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NARRATIVE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

)OLQW VKLU H s SRtEMeW bf Aetoudts lo2fdérdis the income and expenditure on service provis
for the yeartBApril 2016 33 March 201@nd the value of th& & Q F L O T Viabili&sHast/31sOMuGh 2017
The Group Accoumisorporate8V K H & RiKaQdial StdtéMments with that of its wholly owned subsidiary Nortl
Wales Homes (NEW Homes).

The Acounts have beprepared in accordance with the requirements d@/iff€@@dof Practice on Local
Authority Accounting which is based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

As always the production of this comprehensive and complex set of accounts has required an enormo
many peopkcross theddincil both within finance and within service portfolio areas. However, the Council
PDQDJHG WR SUHSDUH DQG VXEPLW WKH $FFRXQWV WR "WkKeél &R
2017

The ©uncil set its budget for thé/PDfinancial year in the context of a continuing reduction in public sector f
and a rising demand for its serdespite facing significant challengesrirsah as an underachievement of
£964 on itsprogramme offieiencies, the Council vidisable téimit spendgto £2,03% less than its approved
budget, duo a combination of -offesavings and good financial management andTé@mntradst significant
LPSDFW ZDV D FKDQJH LQ \HDU WR WKH & RKhdd fo4jtive @tfeQtloPE£R B8EkH

Therevenueutturn positioexplained belag/jmportant to residemd rent payersrecord onlythose expenses
which statute allows to be charged aga@® I® FLOTV DQQXDO EXG JmWoudd Gaid P R X
rents Revenue outtudiffers from theéomprehensive Income and Expenditure Statemeas (CiESudes
charges foitems such as depreciation, impairment, capital grants and penswhicthamgascounting
adjustments not ud#dn the outturn

In addition to meeting the statutory déadfireducing the Accquihis finance s@re also aspires to develop a
Statement ofcéounts that is more accessible to users. Flintshire County Council is a large andtiinerse c
and theinformation contained in thes®mukts is technical and complex. The aim of this narrative state
therefore, is to provide a general guide to the items of interest and highlights some of the more significal
have determinddst position for theffioial year ending 31 March 2017

COUNCIL PERFORMARCIRING THE YEAR

The COQFLOTV ,PSURYHPH@W IDKDH ZIRXQFLOYY SULRULWLHV IRU W
IRFXV ZDV QHHGHG VWH &L DRQIKPWL R ULKW HiVpridQi€s dep&nidéniQupanQhe
IRFXV RI DWWHQWLRQ IRU WKH \HDU 7KH SODQ LV SXEOLVKHC
clearly explains for eachsidsity why it is a piyonvhat we intend to achieve and how we will measure tt
achievements. A separate linked document is also published which describes in more detail the actual
MHPLOHVWRQHVY LQ PDNLQJ LPSURYHPHQWYV RU FKDQJH WKURXJ

Public repts which measure ortogpess against this documenpudrieshed quartenlyith e latest repddr
Quater 3 (September to Decemteg)rted to Cabinet in March2¥13,LODEOH RQ WKH &RXQFL
year report, available mid &1y &ongside a fuller assessment of achievements for the year.



NARRATIVE REPORT

FINANCIAL PERFORMAIRCRING THE YEAR

7KH UHYHQXH EXGJHW LV WK Ditnay &xpéngitureRavidHibcodm&Vai duch Ret@ Bd<alfr
and wagesunning costs of services and the financing costs of capital expenditure. The capital progran
expenditure on the acquisition of significant assets which will be of use or benefit to the Council in providi
beyond the year of accauth as the enhancement or replacement of roads, buildings and other structures.

Economic climate

Approximately% of théudget requiremémt Council services comes from Welsh Government through Agagt
External Funding (Revenue Support GratraDomestic Rates). 116/2@1there was a decrease in funding of
1.®%6 which combined with signiioat$ UHVV XUHV ITURP IDFWRUV RohWoalityGlireciohsW |
or new legislation from UK and Welsh Government. Theseressuneledre expected to be met by the Coun
without extra funds being set aside by Governmeluigamnuflation, demographic gr@aittitional workforce cost
pressuresind a general increase in demand for Council séhacespact of fundimgt keeping pace with
increasing costs had significant consequences and will continue to do so in future years as this position i
to improve and this is reflected in our latest refresh of our Medium Term Financial Strategy.

Despite this fimgal challenge, portfolio business plans and corporate financing options @hebléor us t
£10,52k of new efficienciasourr016/1budgetenabling the Council to invest itiggisuch as school budgets
social carand providingsources t@shapeservices.

Revenue outturn compared to budget

The Council Fund budget f@/2Ddas set at25199k and approved by Council@ebruary 2018udget
monitoring information was reported to Cabinet on a monthly basis throughidufitied gaturn reported on
18&h July 2017

The budget strategy 2016/1Was based on an orgatosal strategy to reduce costs to shield and protect Ic
services. It includes a package of measures and proposals which combine corpptiatesfipantolp level
business plan proposals, review of pressures antewarkibers, as well as maionisof income generation
and a review of reserves and balances.

Total net expenolé fol2056/17amounted #249,95R (expenditure 02®,39& reduced byl€4k resources in
excess of what was anticipatgaihst theudgebf£25199Kk.



NARRATIVE REPORT

2016/17 2016/17

Budget Actual Variance
£000 £000 £000

Corporate Services :
Chief Executive 2,930 2,892 (38)
People and Resources 4,660 4,574 (86)
Governance 7,122 7,779 57
15,312 15,245 (67)
Social Services 60,551 60,821 270
Community and Enterprise 12,492 12,312 (180)
Streetscene and Transportation 28,556 29,364 808
Planning and Environment 5,052 5,368 316
Education and Youth 99,140 98,947 (193)
Organisational Change 8,465 8,079 (386)
Net expenditure on services 229,568 230,136 568
Central loans and investment account 15,223 12,147 (3,076)
Central and Corporate Finance 8,623 9,536 913
Total net expenditure 253,414 251,819 (1,595)
Contribution from reserves (1,423) (1,423) 0
Budget requirement 251,991 250,396 (1,595)

Financed by

Council tax (net of community council precepts expenditure) 67,241 67,685 (444)
General grants 138,899 138,899 0
Non-domestic rates redistribution 45,851 45,851 0
Total resources 251,991 252,435 (444)
Net variance - (underspend) 0 (2,039) (2,039)

The underspend of £1,595k, increased to £2,039k by way of additional Council Tax income of £444k, served with other
agreed funding transfers to produce year-end Council fund revenue reserves of £31,478k.



NARRATIVE REPORT

The table below shows the position for the Housing Reveriae thecaanrt

2016/17vasthe second of a 6 year programme of capital schemes to improve the quality of its housing
achieve the Welsh Housing Quality Standard which is in pgntefueidael cobtrtions Overall, a decision was
made during the year to increase the capital programme funded by additional revenue contributions.
plannedoverspendvas more than mitigated by underspends on other budget headdiggnahaéhcome
generted, resulting in a net contribution to HRA reserves of £125k bringing the total HRA relglamads as ¢
20170 £1,642k.

Capital Programme Budget, Outturn and Financing

Each year the Council approves a programme of capital works, whochnpestidestfin assets such as land,
buildings and road improvements. Tél& 7ZDdpital Programme was approved in the sim®bKEHousing
Revenue Accourt5f933kand Council Funé1£143k this figure moved during the course of the yeal to a f
programme total 66f65%, (Housing Revenue Acco2@9fk and Council Fun8605K). Capital Programme
budget monitoring information was reported to Cabinet on a quarterly basis throughout the year, with
reported oh8h July 201



NARRATIVE REPORT

ExpenditurmcurredV. VHW RXW LQ WKH WDEOH EHORZ SUHVHQWHG RQ
Government in collecting capital data by way of the Capital Outturn Return (COR) form, for its pul
Goernment Finance Statist@shemes and projects includ@Y HV W P H Q W haulinysi€kas@pRrixif@ F L O
plan tachieg the Welsh Housing Quality Stamaardhe 21Century Schools building programme which incluc
building a neall throug schodbr ages 3to I8BW +RO\ZHOO DQG D pKXEY IRU SRVW
with ColeGambria.

The programmesafiaanceds follows

Strategic Housing and Regeneration Programme (SHARP)

The Council has embarked on an ambitious house building psograrnrog itStrategic Housing and
Regeneration Programme (SHARP)a Byear period 500 fesnes will be built at a range of sites across ti
countya mixturef newcouncil houses and affordadigesalongside commissioning a range of linked regenera
initiatives and community benefits.

During the year the first batch of new Cousiag ldbbéunded through the Housing Revenue Awasunt
completed with 12 homesandlbccupieat Custom Housdd QH & R Q Q Bubstantidlsnionas completed
towards buildi®® new properties at The Vé#kis Flint (one of the former metiso sites) amabrk began to
develop another 40 homea @urther 5 sitdsQ OROG /HHVZRRG DOQdbcdiR Quiig khe year X
totaled £,817Kincluded within the housing figtine Capital Outtabbovg Agreement in principle veasgiaven
during the year for a further 195 propedegeral sites.
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$IIRUGDEOH KRPHY DUH EHLQJ GHYHORS agNtK EaRMaEE HaMe$H (NER/X (
Homesin partnership with the Couaiting # year the NEW Homes board approved the development of 62
affordable homes for rent at The Walks site in Flint (one of the former maisonette sites). Following a thor
RI FDSLWDO IXQGLQJ RSWLRQV DY DodedxBmgprvaNty Horiow e afiiddl 8 anie
requireddirectly from the Council. The Council approvedvitie£l8@99k drawn down during the(alear
included within the housing figtine Capital Quat).

Borrowing

No long term BlicWorks Loan Board (PWinBjicial institution borrowing was undeiakgp05/17 - the
Council continuesus® cash reserves to fund capital expenditure in place of new borrowing. The balance ¢
term) borrowing tafA250,98k includeshe sum of378k relating to interest free loans from Salix Finaaoce Ltd.
independent company funded by the Carbon Trust to help improve enerthegpfildierssctor buildingygith

new loans taken out during the year to improve thdieeeigy afstreet lightemgd loantotalingg860k from
Welsh Government fegeneratioimitiativesn Deeside under the Vibrant and Viable Places Scinethe with
Capital Programme

Financial Position at8March 2017

Reserves and Provisions

The Council sets funding aside to meet future liabilities and service developments in provisions and res
the Balance Sheet &t 8arch 2017

Provisions are based on past dhanislaces an obligation on the Gehictilis likely toutg a future financial
liability, but there is uncertainty over the timing and precise value of the liability. Provisiohoarilisclosed

The Council has established a number of revenue fategvesitside the definition of a @rpwich are
summarised in the table below. The Council fund balance is a measure of the uncommitted reserves the
prudently to meet cash flow requirements and unforeseen future events.

Pension Liability

The liability recorded in the balance sheet (£395,050k) has increased by £86,37 Lkthunlygaihe yesu)t of
changes to the financial assumptions used by the pension fufitiéAotaarychange relates to the decrease i
the discount rate used to discount the future cash flows of the fund. These assumptions are determined
and represent the market conditions at the balance sheet date. The Council relies and places assu
professional judgement of the Actuary and the assumptions used to calcul@esthesliaddiffote 48re in
accordance with Intéoral Accounting Standard 19 (IAS 19), accounting in full for the pethsibrs libbilivyal
projected deficit over the life of thd A #l9 has no impact on Qdardevels or housing finance, but the liabili
does impact on the nettwof théduthority as reflected irbtédance sheet total 48%1& (£168,16k as at 3%
March 2@@).
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Revaluation of Neurrent Assets

All norcurrenaissets must be revalued every five ff@aiSouncil meets this requirdmpert/aluing a proportion
of the total asset portfolio each year;2088itg (thesecond/ear of theurrentycle, commencirfgAbril 208)

13% ofoperationalonrdwelling assets were revalddte exception to this arrangement being CoumgksDwell
which were all valued in 20157/h6. overall impact of 208/17 revaluation process was alemeasan the
value of necurrent property assqisoperty, plant and equipment, investment properties and the agricultural
recorded indtbalanceheetffomE709764 to £595,64K).

FINANCIAL OUTLOOK FOR THE COUNCIL

The Council has a Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) which forecasts the amount of resource that
likely to have over the next 3 years, identify angdpndmd) enable specific actions to be identified to balance
budget and manage resources.

The MTFS is under constant review to reflect budget developments at a national and local level. The
adopted a principled but high risk appréadimg solutions to the unprecedented level of budget savings to be
for 2017/18 and beyond and a revised version is due to be published later in 2017.

The Council was able to set a balanced budget for 2017/18 at its meeting in Felugiamh (die stltfiooecast

is that a further £12m will need to befdo2@ll8/19. This forecast continues to be developed, alongsid
development of a refreshed medium term forecast over the next 3 to 5 years, to incorporate budget deve
natonal and local level.

Flintshire, as a low funded Council, has made the case that it is particularly exposed to the significant anr
to public sector funding to meet current and new cost burdens. The Council continues to werkmathit \Wels
to address this as part of its overall financial strategy.

Regular updates will be provided to Cabinet and relevant Scrutiny committees throughout the year as par
process which will include public engagement and exterdat stedsbns.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Council has a comprehensive risk management policy and strategy. All the priority areas withi
Improvement Plan identify the risks which may prevensocdeissiet deliveryoaf airs. These risks are
assessed and then tracked throughout the year on a minimum quarterivdragiemBatie also embedded
within ouvays of workingor example, through partnerships, business plan efficiency reports and within ea
subnited to Cabinet or Overview and Scrutiny Cemmittee

7KH $XGLW &RPPLWWHH UHFHLYHV D VXPPfddnamilemd &fyediie Xr@ BfL O *
year risk registeasreporedto Audit Commitiedwne and is available on tiXCQFLOTV ZHEVLWH

CHANGESND FUTURE CHANGQESTHE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS
During the yesignificant chandesve beeh QW URGXFHG WR WKH &R XQFLOTV 6WDW

Theformat of the Comprehensive Income and lepStatemehas changed etlstatement is now presented on
WKH VDPH EDVLV DV WKH &&RJCE poLtiolfis)rela i R ye i ngpaditsirhJr Epkting Yhavi
standard prescribed categodersew principal statement has been introduced calfshdtiteirenal Funding
Analysis whith also produced per service portfoBbamst annual expenditure incurred, how the expenditure
been funded fraesourceavailabléo the Councillhis iscompare@ with the samaformation presented in the
Comprehensilecome and Expenditure Statement in accordance with generally accepted accourt#ng pra
aim of the changes isttengthen the link between in year budget monitoring reports-and Siatgeaent of
AccountsAs a result minor presentdtahanges have been matte tflovement in Reserves Statement
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Future changes affecting the Statement of Accounts:

During the year the Council has approved the set-up of various alternative service delivery models which will impact
on the Council’s future Statements of Accounts and Group Accounts. A local authority trading company delivering
Facility Management Services (Catering and Cleaning) will be established on 1st May 2017, and a Community
Benefit Society to deliver Leisure and Library Services will be established on 1st July 2017.

Welsh Government have consulted on proposed changes to the Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations during the
year. The draft regulations have not yet come into force but are expected soon which would bring forward the
timetable for preparing and publishing statement of accounts of all local authorities in Wales. The Council is actively
preparing for having to produce its accounts earlier in conjunction with its external auditors. The draft regulations
also remove the requirement for pension fund statements to be included in the administering bodies’ accounts.

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Minor changes to accounting policies have been made during 2016/17 to reflect changes in the Code of Practice and
the way in which Council services are delivered. The changes stem from changes made to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement referenced earlier. Costs of centrally provided support services and administrative buildings
are no longer apportioned to standard prescribed services determined by the Service Reporting Code of Practice, they
are charged to service portfolios as shown on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statements.

EXPLAINING THE ACCOUNTING STATEMENTS

The Statement of Accounts sets out the Council’s income and expenditure for the year (2016/17) and provides details of
the Council’s financial position at 31st March 2017. The Statement is comprised of core and supplementary statements,
together with disclosure notes. The information presented on pages 11 - 94 is in accordance with the requirements of
the 2016/17 Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) based on International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA).

«  The core financial statements —

o Movement in Reserves Statement — this statement shows the movement in the year on the different
reserves held by the authority, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (ie those that can be applied to fund
expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. The Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of
Services line shows the true economic cost of providing the authority’s services, more details of which are
shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory
amounts required to be charged to the Council Fund Balance and the Housing Revenue Account for council
tax setting and dwellings rent setting purposes. The Net Increase / Decrease before Transfers to
Earmarked Reserves line shows the statutory Council Fund Balance and Housing Revenue Account
Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves undertaken by the council.

At 31st March 2017 usable reserves were £47,803k and unusable reserves were negative £4,285k;

o Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - this statement shows the accounting cost in the
year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the
amount to be funded from local taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with
regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement
in Reserves Statement.

The 2016/17 deficit on the provision of services is £52,062k; which is carried into the movement in reserves
statement.
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o Balance Sheetthe Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the ass
ligbilities recognised by the authority. The net assets of the authority (assets less liabilities) are
the reserves held by the authority. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category
are usable reserves, ie those regbatehe authority may use to provide services, subject to the ne
maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example
Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditubt) o hepsgcdad category is
those that the authority is not able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includ
that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts
become availaliteprovide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differenc
LQ WKH ORYHPHQW LQ 5HVHUYHV 6WDWHPHQW OLQH u$G
XQGHU UHJXODWLRQVY

The net worth of teuncil wasiB51& asat 33 March 201/&presenting a decrease from the balance
sheet totalf£16819k as at 3¥March 2016

o Cash Flow Statemerthe Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalent
authority during the reporting period. tEheestashows how the authority generates and uses cash
cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. Th
net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the eklteaperatibics of the
authority are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services pro
authority. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made fc
which are intendedtFRQWULEXWH WR WKH DXWKRULW\TV IXWXUH
activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (ie borro
authority.

x  The supplementary financial statementisiogno:

o The Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Stateffleat HRA Income and
Expenditure Statement shows the economic cost in the year of providing housing services in
with generally accepted accounting practices, rathmer anaount to be funded from rents and
government grants. Authorities charge rents to cover expenditure in accordance with regulatio
be different from the accounting cost. The increase or decrease in the year, on the basis on wh
rased, is shown in the Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Statement.

During 2@l17the HRAalancenoved frofl,51Kto £1,64R

x  The group accounts assbciated not@scorporatefinancial accounts of North East Wales Homes
and Propertf DQDIJHPHQW ZLWK WKH &RXQFLOYV

x  The pension fund accoreysrts the contributions received, payments to pensioners and the value @
assets invested in the Local Government Pension Scheme on bmdralbbtheebiwyd Pension Fund,
presated in accordance with required guidance

x  The Annual Governance Statement sets out the governance structures of the Council and its key
controls.

FURTHER INFORMATION

The Statement of Accounts is available on thevimeriititghire.goy;ukith further information available on
accounts and budgets availabtequest from the Corporate Finance Manager, Flintshire County Council,
Hall, Mold;H7 6NA.


http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/




EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS
for the year endedt®larch 2017

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is usesnaresdundes! (government
grants, rents, council tax anddsssnates) by local authoiitiemarison with those resources consumed o
earned bguthorities in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting practices. It also shows how thésigxpenc
allocated falecin making purposes between ¥ Qdetviedportfolios. Incame expnditure accounted for

under generally acceptamb@acting practices is presanta@ fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expendi
Statement

11



COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT
for the year endedt®larch 2017

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shows the accounting cost iditite sgzaices pnov
accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from |
Authorities raise local taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be diffe
accoumng cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.



MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT
for the year endedtarch 2017

The movement in reserves statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held b
analysed into Usable Reserves (those that can dé¢oafyplck expenditure or reduce local taxation) and ot
(Unusable) Reserves.

7TKH 6 XUSOXV RU 'HILFLW RQ WKH 3URYLVLRQ RI 6HUYLFHV O
services, more details of which are shown in the Comaphet@msl and Expenditure Statement. These a
different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the Council Fund Balance and the Hou
Account for council tax setting and dwellings rent setting purposes.

The Increasdkcreasethe yeashows the Statutory Council Fund Balance and Housing Revenue Account
before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarkegkrsisevwes Note 23

1c



BALANCE SHEET
as at 3¥MarctR017

*In producing the 2Q¥6accounts it was noted that thelBINBR creditor balance of £2,580k had been incorrectly included in the debtor balance.
Opening credi and debtor balances have subsequently been amended.

14



BALANCE SHEET

The Balance Shebibws the value at the balance sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by tF
The net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reservesateicdpldsdrieswo
categoriex

x Usable Reserveghose reserves that the Authority may use to provide services, subject to the
maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (e.g. the Capit
Reserve #t may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt).

x Unusable Reservdhose reserves that thuthority is ainle to use to provide services, including reserv:
that hold unreed gains and losses (e.g. the Revaluation Reserve), whisrevamdwonly become
available to provide servitéise assets are sold, and reserves that hold timing differences shown
ORYHPHQW LQ 5HVHUYHV 6WDWHPHQW OLQH uU$GMXVWPHQ
UHJXODWLRQVT



CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 31st March 2017

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Authority during the reporting period.
The statement shows how the Authority generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as
operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key
indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Authority are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from
the recipients of services provided by the Authority. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have
been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Authority’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising
from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the
Authority.

The cash flow statement is reported using the indirect method, whereby net surplus or deficit on the provision of
services is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future
operating cash receipts or payments, and items of revenue or expense associated with investing or financing cash
flows.

Note 2017 2016

£000 £000 £000 £000
Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services (52,062) (136,496)
Adjustment to surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non-cash 68,900 92,716
movements
Adjust for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision (22,811) (26,757)
of services that are investing and financing activities
Net cash flows from operating activities 25 (5,973) (70,537)
Net cash flows from investing activities 26 (22,245) (25,468)
Net cash flows from financing activities 27 10,117 78,389

(12,128) 52,921

Net increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents (18,101) (17,616)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 17 25,063 42,679
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 17 6,962 25,063

16



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year endedt®larch 2017

INTRODUCTIAOMD NOTES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority
the United Kingdom &QZ(the Code) drthe & R X QaEdonfing policieBhe notes that follgwo 45 set out
supplementary information to assist readers of the accounts.

1. NOTE TO EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS

The adjustments between the funding and accouniiitgibalses Egpditure and Funding Analysis is explained |
more detail below.
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

a. Adjustments for Capital Purposes

This column adds in capital accounting adjustments that are natLrépérte® DfinalRoutivh @ larR | Vv
required in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditureb@ttter@ente of Practice and includes; depreciatic
impairments, revaluation losses, amorasakienenue expenditure funded from capital und¢REREILES).

Net gains and losses on the disposalairreart assets (included within otheingpergtenditure) and capital
grants and contributions (included within taxatiorspedfrmogrant income and expenditure) are reported in
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statemetnin the final outturn report and therefore arevitttluded
capital accounting adjustments.

b. Adjustments foEmployee Beneffturposes

This column adds in accounting adjustments related to IAS 19 Employee Benefits that are not repo
SRUWIROLRYV ILQDO RXWW X WhQiveElXcdmeDdddH ExpehdiXite Bthtemen) byMikeHC ofle
Practice and includesnsion adjustmenrt®moving the employer pension contributions made to the pension
during the year, and replacing with the current service and past serviceheostdc(ated benefit earned
during the year), and the movement on the accumulated absences provisartgbetimgdise of leave
entittementsarned by employees but not taken before -trel ywelich is carried forward into the next financ
year).

Theadministrative expenses andighénterest on the net defined benefit liability (includdédewiipi@rating
expenditure affithancing and investment income and expesspeersvelyarereported in the Comprehensive
Income and ExpendstStatement but not in the fittafroreport and thereforermtaded within employee benefit
accounting adjustments.

c. OtherAdjustments

This column contains all other accounting adjustments required in the Comprehensive Indonee and
6WDWHPHQW E\ WKH &RGH RI 3UDFWLFH WKDW DUH QRW UHSR
received to fund REFQE®poval of charges to revenue to fund capital seimewalsof statutory provision for the
financing a@apital expenditure (Minimum Revenue Pendsliein) rescheduling

,Q DGGLWLRQ WKH FROXPQ DOVR LQFOXGHYV DGMXVWPHQWYV IR
the Code of Practice to be reported below the Costfilgewithin the Comprehensive Income and Expendi
Statement and includes; income and expenditure related to investment properties (included within f
investment income and expenditure), interest payable and interest and investicladedeothm financing
and investment income and expenditure)
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2.SEGMENTAL INCOME AXPENDITURE

Income and expenditure reported on a segmentaQassX GHG ZLWKLQ W Kal OEtRi® XLRX Wik
Expenditure and Funding Analysesjuired by the Code of Praedioewrbelow

3. INCOME ANEXPENDITURENALYSED BY NATURE
Income and Expenditure reported within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is analys



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURE

2017 2016

£000 £000

Precept - Office of North Wales Police and Crime Commissioner 15,070 14,596
Other preceptors - Community Councils 2,591 2,487
Levy - North Wales Fire and Rescue Authority 7,023 7,033
Net gain on the disposal of non-current assets (2,089) (1,084)
Admin. expenses on the net defined benefit liability 940 406
23,535 23,438

5. FINANCING AND INVESTMENT INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

An aggregate net financing and investment income and expenditure total of £22,669k (£20,761k in 2015/16),
incorporates the investment losses and investment expenditure detailed below.

2017 2016
£000 £000
Interest payable and similar charges 13,401 13,727
Investment losses and investment expenditure 2,454 3,109
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (see note 45) 10,443 10,422
Interest and investment income (3,629) (6,497)
22,669 20,761
6. LOCAL TAXATION AND NON-SPECIFIC GRANT INCOME
2017 2016
£000 £000
Council tax income (85,346) (81,355)
Non-domestic rates (45,851) (43,876)
Non-ringfenced government grants (138,899) (144,022)
Capital grants and contributions (14,077) (23,611)
(284,173) (292,864)

Council Tax

All domestic properties are included in the Council Tax Valuation List which is issued and maintained by the Valuation
Office Agency, part of HMRC. Each property is placed in one of nine property bands (Band A to Band I) depending on
the open market valuation of the dwelling at 1st April 2003 (otherwise known as the valuation date). A tenth band (A-) is
only available to those taxpayers who live in band ‘A’ properties and are entitled to a disabled banding reduction.

Council Tax is payable based on the valuation band into which a property has been placed by the Valuation Office
Agency. Gross charges are calculated by dividing the total income requirements of the County Council, Police and
Crime Commissioner for North Wales and Town/Community Councils by the council tax base.

The tax base is the total of all the properties in each band expressed as Band ‘D’ equivalent numbers and adjusted for
exemptions, discounts and disregards. Allowances are also made within the tax base for bad or doubtful debts.

The tax base for 2016/17 was 62,759 band ‘D’ equivalent properties (61,993 in 2015/16) as calculated in the following
table:
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7KH )OLQWVKLUH &RXQW)\ &R XQ RQKN7BaLELOHISNE ] ORI OBMER@upc] S U
tax bills are based on thddwing multipliers for bands A

Band A A B C D E F G H I
Multiplier 5/9 6/9 7/9 8/9 9/9 11/9 13/9 15/9 18/9 21/9

Other precepts added@d/17 Council Tax demand notices includeédrthéVales Police and Crime
Commisenerprecept in the suntdd,078(£14,598in205/16) and34Town and Community Councils who
collectively raised precepts tofdl|B@k (£2,87 in 204/16).

Analysis of the net proceeds from Council tax:

NonDomestic Rates (NDR)

NDR is organised on a national basis. The government sets the rate goum2i2Bél ias48.6 for all
propertiel®.2 in 209/16). The Council is responsible for collecting the rates in its area, which are paid intc
pool administered by the Welsh Government.

The Welsh Government distributes NDR pool recaapsuthdaties on the basis of a fixed amount per heac
populatior06/17 NDR income paid intopgbelwas£65,80k afterrelief and provision6542% in 205/16),
based on a year end rateable value £064,991 (£13,286& in 205/16).
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Analysis of the net proceeds from non-domestic rates:

2017 2016

£000 £000

Non-domestic rates collected 65,973 65,040
Less - Paid into NDR pool (65,805) (65,423)
Less - Cost of collection (341) (338)
Increase/Decrease in bad debts provision 168 303
Relief Schemes 5 418
0 0

Receipts from pool 45,851 43,876
45,851 43,876

7. MATERIAL ITEMS OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
HRA Settlement Payment - 2015/16

On 2nd April 2015 all 11 stock (Council housing) retaining authorities in Wales signed a voluntary agreement with the UK
and Welsh Governments to change the financing arrangements for council housing in Wales.

The negative subsidy system in operation, which required Flintshire to make annual payments of circa £6m in negative
subsidy to Welsh Government and on to UK Treasury, ended. This was replaced with interest payments on Public
Works Loan Board (PWLB) loans that the Council borrowed to exit the subsidy system as part of the agreement. The
PWLB loans, called the settlement payment (a one-off lump sum payment classed as capital expenditure), was paid to
Welsh Government (WG) and on to UK Treasury. For Flintshire this amounted to £79,248k, the payment is shown
separately of the face of the Housing Revenue Account and the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as
a material item of expenditure.

The agreement will generate revenue savings allowing the Council to increase its investment in existing stock, and
support the delivery of additional supply of housing. It will also provide more local accountability to tenants.

HRA Valuations - Dwellings — 2015/16

During 2015/16 the Council's Housing Stock was revalued. The carrying net book value of the Council Dwellings
decreased by £34,915k which was debited to the HRA line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account
representing a downwards movement in the valuation of the Council’s housing stock since the last revaluation on 1st
April 2011. Shown on the face of the Housing Revenue Account and the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as a material item of expenditure.
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING BASIS UNDER REGULATIONS

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure recc
Authority ithe year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified |
provisions as being available to the Authority to meet future capital and revenue expenditure. The debit
theyear is 49154k (£33,37Rin 205/16)
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9. PROPERTYPLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Council dwellings, other land and buildings, vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment that are held, occt
contracted to be used on behalf of the Authority, or consumed in the direct deliverydefdsareickeellimga
and other housing properties, office buildings, schools, libraries, sports centres and pools, residentic
centres, depots and workshops, cemetery buildings, off street car parks, vehicles, mechanical plant, fixtu
and other equipment.

Infrastructure assets are inalienable assets, expenditure on which is only recoverable by continued use
created, i.e. there is no prospect of sale or alternative use. Included are highways, footpaths, bridge
drainage facilities and coastal defences.

Community assets are assets that the Authority intends to hold in perpetuity, that have no determinable
which may, in addition, have restrictions on their disposal. There is little peogpebbofjsadé use. Included
are parks and open spaces, recreation grounds, play areas and cemetery land.
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fair Value Measurement of Surplus Assets

'"HWDLOV RI WKH DXWKRULW\{fV VXUSOXV DVYVHW-chasolldawsR U P D

There were no transfers between different fleedtgrofalue hierarchy durengethr andhére has been no
change in the valuation techniques used during treuysasfassets.

,Q HVWLPDWLQJ WKH Iduiplus "3t HhigRdst\&nd HedD ixs¥/df RéJpravasfidsetaken
into account.

The authority is required to disclose where the highest and best use differs from current use. In line with
as surplus assets, a number of these assets are currently vacant; in these cases the curteghesteaiscot tl
best use.

7KH &R, @ fisihgyapproprialigation techniques, have maxirtiie use aflevant known inputs and
minimied the use of unobservable inputs.

The valuation techngjused to measure the fair valsarplus asse are thenarketapproach anthe income
DSSURDFK 7B8XRXYFERQYLYGHUHG WKHVH EDVHV WR EH DSSU

(i) Market approachse of prices and other relevant information and data generated by market transactio
the valueftheasset payable by the market.

(i) Income approaghise of this approach reflects the market expectation of the future cash flows receivabls
asset.
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND AGRICULTURAL ESTATE

2017 2016

£000 £000
Cost or Valuation
At 1st April 30,612 30,805
Reclassifications (1,868) (1,124)
Additions 46 1
Revaluation Increases/Decreases to Surplus/Deficit (237) 930
Other Adjustments 1 0
At 31st March 28,554 30,612
Depreciation and Impairments
At 1st April 0
Reclassifications 0 0
Reversal of Impairments recognised in the Surplus/Deficit W) 0
Impairment / Depn 46 1
At 31st March 46 1
Balance Sheet at 31st March 28,508 30,611

Fair Value Measurement of Investment Property

Details of the authority’s investment properties and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31st March is as

follows:
Quoted prices in

active markets for  Other significant Significant
identical assets observable unobservable  Fair Value as at
(Level 1) inputs (Level 2) inputs (Level 3) 31 March
£000 £000 £000 £000
2016117
Commercial and Industrial Estates 0 0 17,018 17,018
Agricultural Estate - Farms 0 10,630 0 10,630
Agricultural Estate - Grazing Land 0 0 860 860
Total 0 10,630 17,878 28,508
2015/16
Commercial and Industrial Estates 0 0 17,883 17,883
Agricultural Estate - Farms 0 11,820 0 11,820
Agricultural Estate - Grazing Land 0 0 908 908
Total 0 11,820 18,791 30,611

There were no transfers between different levels of the fair value hierarchy during the year and there has been no
change in the valuation techniques used during the year for investment properties.

In estimating the fair value of the authority’s investment properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their
current use.

The fair value of the authority’s investment property is measured annually at each reporting date. In 2016/17 the
Council's farms and smallholdings were valued by an external valuer, with the remainder of the valuations carried out by
the Council’s internal valuers. All valuations are carried out in accordance with the methodologies and bases for
estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors. The authority’s valuation
experts work closely with finance officers regarding all valuation matters.
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Valuation Techgues used to Determine Level 2 and 3 Fair Values for Investment Properties
Significant Observable Inpléevel 2

7KH &R XQ FL OnfallhdlBing® Werb val@edvby an external independent valuer in accordance with IFF
Value requirementisng the markeproach for such assets but reflecting the specific circumstances of eac
e.g. vacant or subject to an exstiagcyThe @uation hierarchy Level 2asasidered appropriate giktails

of themarketompararswere providess part of the valuatiepart The valuation techniques also considere
highest and best use refleatiag is physically possible olyiggaimissible.

Significant Unobservable Infiasel 3

The valuation techniques usertésure the fairuabf the grazing and bamddre themarket approach dhe
LQFRPH DS SUR D vfuef] ¥KHR &QRIAsS i £31@/be appropriate because:

(i) Marketpproachtuse of prices and other relauégrmation and data genefatedarketansactions reflects
the value tifieasset payable by the market

(i) Income approaghise of this approach reflects the market expectation otésé filiure receivable from that
asset.

7KH &R Xapé,. @ 1usingrappropriate valuationiqeels in the circumstances and where sufficient datz
available, have maximized the use of relevant known inputs and méeimiaetbtiservable inputs. The grazing
and bareahd valuation techniques refleetezl 3 input due to the lackaokH W GDWD REWDLQDEC
value§

The valuation techniques usedessure the fair value of the commercial and irslattsateethe income
approach (for assets) dratarketapproach R U YDFD QW O D Qalbef] V KFHHRe@tRIX &R EES H\be Y
appropriate because:

(i) Income approatinse of this approach reflects the market expectation otésé fldwre receivable from that
asset.

(i) Market approaalse of prices and other relenfamtriation and data geteelby market transactions reflects
the value tiieasset payable by the market.

+RZHYHU SUHGRPLQDWHO\ WKH DSSURDFK WR YDOXLQJ WKH FI
existing information and data reflecting such faetdargrasvth, occupancy levels, bad debt levels, and cost:
repair and maintenance olbliga@V 7KHUHIRUH WKH &RXQFLOYV kR WEvEID O
3 as the valuation approach uses unobservable inputs and dmat dimthie dame basis when valuing the ass
as would be uskbgmarket participants.



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

At 1st April 2016

Additions

Assets newly classified as held for sale
Assets declassified as held for sale

Net Reclassifications
Reversal of Impairments
Revaluation gains
Revaluation losses

Net Revaluations
Assets sold

At 31st March 2017

At 1st April 2015
Additions

Assets newly classified as held for sale
Assets declassified as held for sale

Net Reclassifications

Impairments
Revaluation gains
Revaluation losses
Net Revaluations
Assets sold

At 31st March 2016

Council Dwellings & Other Property, Plant Investment
Garages & Equipment  Properties Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
956 2,600 3,556
0 100 0 100
874 4,214 2,051 7,139
0 0 (347) (347)
874 4,214 1,704 6,792
0 0 0 0
0 374 178 552
0 (3,640) (166) (3,806)
0 (3,266) 12 (3,254)
(874) (892) (1,185) (2,951)
0 1,112 3,131 4,243
Council Dwellings & Other Property, Plant Investment
Garages & Equipment  Properties Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
0 499 2,157 2,656
0 469 0 469
466 568 1,123 2,157
0 0 0 0
466 568 1,123 2,157
0 (438) 0 (438)
0 716 350 1,066
0 (139) (102) (241)
0 577 248 825
(466) (719) (928) (2,113)
0 956 2,600 3,556

Fair Value Measurement of Assets Held for Sale

Details of the authority’s assets held for sale and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 March is as follows:

2016/17 Assets Held for Sale
2015/16 Assets Held for Sale

There were no transfers between different levels of the fair value hierarchy during the year and there has been no

Quoted prices in
active markets for
identical assets
(Level 1)

£000

Other significant
observable
inputs (Level 2)
£000

710
0

Significant
unobservable
inputs (Level 3)
£000

3,533
3,556

change in the valuation techniques used during the year for Assets Held for Sale.
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Fair Value as at
31 March

£000

4,243
3,556



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In estimating the fair value of the authority’s assets held for sale, the highest and best use of the properties has been

taken into account.

The authority is required to disclose where the highest and best use differs from current use. A number of assets held

for sale are currently vacant pending disposal; in these cases the current use is not the highest and best use.

Significant Unobservable Inputs — Level 3

The valuation techniques used to measure the fair value of assets held for sale are the market approach and income

approach. The Council’s valuer's considered these bases to be appropriate because:-

(i) Market approach - use of prices and other relevant information and data generated by market transactions reflects
the value of the asset payable by the market.

(i) Income approach — use of this approach reflects the market expectation of the future cash flows receivable from that

asset.

The Council’'s valuer’s, in using appropriate valuation techniques have maximized the use of relevant known inputs and

minimized the use of unobservable inputs.

12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2017 2016
Software Development Total Software Development Total
Licences  Expenditure Licences  Expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1st April
Gross carrying amounts 691 607 1,298 677 607 1,284
Accumulated amortisation (517) (553) (1,070) (423) (467) (890)
Net carrying amount 174 54 228 254 140 3%
Additions 0 0 0 14 0 14
Amortisation for the period (88) (29) (117) (94) (87) (181)
Derecognition (Gross) (244) (405) (649) 0 0 0
Derecognition (Amortisation) 244 405 649 0 0 0
Balance at 31st March 86 25 111 174 53 227
Comprising:
Gross carrying amounts 447 202 649 691 607 1,298
Accumulated amortisation (362) (177) (539) (517) (554) (1,071)
Total 85 25 110 174 53 227

Intangible assets are amortised from the first full financial year following acquisition, in line with the related accounting
policy. The amortisation of £117k charged to revenue in 2016/17 (£181k in 2015/16) is charged to Portfolio service

headings in the Cost of Services.
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13. LONG TERM DEBTORS

2017 2016
£000 £000
Other entities and individuals 2,211 2,111
Total 2,211 2,111

Analysis of long term debtors classified as ‘Other entities and individuals’ :-

2017 2016

£000 £000
Renewal and improvement loans 1,923 1,807
First time buyer loans 100 100
Assisted car purchase loans 47 57
Affordable housing deposits 98 98
Private street works 43 45
Loan to NEW Homes 0 4
Total 2,211 2,111

14. INVENTORIES
The Council holds total inventories of £1,075k (£1,069k in 2015/16) in the balance sheet as at 31st March 2017.

2017 2016

£000 £000
Building Maintenance 120 112
Highways Maintenance 171 158
Fuel 27 40
Vehicle Maintenance 52 53
Rock Salt 438 431
Catering 121 122
Recycling Equipment 9 44
Leisure Centres 23 35
Miscellaneous 114 74
Total 1,075 1,069

In accordance with IAS 2 the total cost of purchases in the year of each main type of inventory held at the balance sheet
date is to be disclosed.

2017 2016
£000 £000
Highways maintenance 476 474
Fleet fuel, grounds maintenance and vehicle 910 802
maintenance
Total 1,386 1,276
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15. SHORT TERM DEBTORS

2017 *2016

£000 £000

Central government bodies 16,231 12,790
Other local authorities 1,771 2,546
NHS bodies 2,513 1,654
Public corporations and trading funds 0 389
Other entities and individuals* 19,420 14,160
Council tax 2,714 2,767
T 42649 T 34306

Less provision for impairment losses (note 21) (2,383) (2,404)
Total 40,266 31,902

*In producing the 2016-17 accounts it was noted that the 2015-16 NDR creditor balance of £2,580k had been incorrectly included in the debtor balance.
Opening creditor (central government) and debtor balances (other entities and individuals) have subsequently been amended.

16. SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

The balance sheet total is recorded net of those sums invested for 3 months or less (including overnight/call account
monies) which are treated as cash.

2017 2016
£000 £000
Investments (3 months — 365 days) 0 6,000
Accrued interest 0 14
Total 0 6,014
17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2017 2016
£000 £000 £000 £000
Current Assets
Temporary investments (call accounts) 0 1,200
Cash and cash equivalents 9,375 26,424
Cash overdrawn (2,413) (2,561)
6,962 23,863
Total 6,962 25,063

18. BORROWING REPAYABLE ON DEMAND OR WITHIN 12 MONTHS

2017 2016

£000 £000
Accrued interest on long term external borrowing 2,722 2,731
Loan Maturing 1,600 0
Invest to Save loan (from Welsh Government) 0 0
Energy Efficiency Loans (from Salix Finance Ltd.) 54 54
Short Term external borrowing 10,000 0
Accrued interest on short term external borrowing 1 0
Total 14,377 2,785
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19 CREDITORS

*In producing the 2Q%6accous it was noted that the B BDR creditor balance of £2,580k had been incorrectly included in the debtor balance.
Opening creditor (central government) and debtor balances (other entities and individuals) have subsequently been amended.

20 GRANTNGOME

The Authoyitredited the following grants and contribulierGomprehensive Income and Expenditure Statems
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2017 2016
£000 £000
Credited to Services
WG
Supporting People 5,810 5,875
DELLS Post 16 5,012 5,786
Education Improvement Grant 6,408 6,642
Flying Start 2,955 2,967
Families First 1,533 1,689
Pupil Deprivation 3,416 2,925
Concessionary Fares 2,066 2,161
Sustainable Waste Management 2,822 2,968
Substance Misuse 540 398
Intermediate Care Fund 1,412 816
Independent Living Fund 1,558 1,214
Safer Communities 601 462
Acting for Younger People 428 390
Bus Services Support Grant 558 547
Other 3,898 4,456
Department of Work and Pensions 40,408 39,208
Arts Council Wales 2,031 1,941
Other Grants and Contributions 3,254 2,630
Total 84,710 83,075

Grants and Contributions Received in Advance

The Authority has received a number of grants and contributions that have yet to be recognised as income as they have
conditions attached to them. The funding will be returned to the grantor if the conditions are not met. The balances at
the year end are as follows:

2017 2016
£000 £000
Short Term
Revenue Grants 1,101 129
Capital Grants 0 0
Capital Contributions 322 285
Revenue Contributions 105 444
Total 1,528 858
Long Term
Revenue Grants 0 107
Capital Grants 0 0
Revenue Contributions 324 376
Capital Contributions 2,058 1,787
Total 2,382 2,270
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21 PROVISIONS

The amounts recognised as provisions are the best estimates of the expenditure required to settle prese
The provision total (non current and aiBkd)Rincorporates the following besan

X

The Single Status / Equal Pay provision providetbfuhdirsgnall amount of residual costs associated w
settling of historic equal pay cases all of which were paid during 2016/17.

7KH SURYLVLRQ LQ UHODWLRQ WR WKH p00, 6FKHPH RI $UUDC

MMI was thpredominant insurer of public sector bodies prior to it ceasing to write insurance busi
September 1992. In order to ensure an orddflyargnheme of arrangement with its Creditors was pu
place. In the event of it becoming cleasdthatrd ruoff was unlikely to be achieved then the scheme
arrangement would be triggered. All scheme Creditors would be subject to a percentage levy or
liabilities paid to date and any future payments would be made at a reduced rate.

Thescheme of arrangement was triggeretoveber 2012 with an initial levy of 15% of claims paid to
set by the scheme administrator. Creditors were informed in March 2016 that the levy would increase
payments due for the additiGfalot claims paid to date payable in April 2016. Flintshire, as the incumbg
government organisation, is responsible for paying the levy in relation to the former borough councils
Alyn and Deeside, and its share of the former goaihiyf €@wyd as agreed with the other North Wales L«
Authorities. Payment was made in May 2016.

Theaftercare of former landfill pi@ades for the environmental aftercare costs for the former waste d
sites at Standard, Buckley and BlroBlbkley, split across a curadilityand a nowurrat liability The
projected costs have been embodied in performance deeds with Natural Resources Wales (f
(QYLURQPHQW $JHQF\ 7KHVH GHHGYV hRod B makeHin&piahisionRor W |
aftercare for 60 years from the date the landfill site was closed. The provision is revised by way of in
year in line with RPI, and reviewed for adequacy. The provision matches the legainebligatioea con
performance deeds.

7KH &RXQFLOYV VHUYLFH 3RUWIROLRY KDYH EXVLQHVY SODQ
costs in order to making recurring revenue savings. The Council was sufficiently committed with som
the balance sheet date to warrant the creation of a provision in 2016/17 for the termination benefits
OHDYLQJ WKH &RXQFLOTVY HPSOR\PHQW LQ
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x  The employee claims provision covers the antisisatéeroployee claims against the Council.

x A pharmaceutical company abandoned their premises in Sandycroft leaving substantial quantities of
site. Subsequently the company went into liquidation. In the interest of protectir@oiivecp it other
statutory partners had to intervernienplegnent a phagaen to remove the risk to the public and restore t
site. Over the past 4 years the Council has removed the chemicals and begun to decontaminate the
the year th€ouncil has disposed of the site along with all liabilities to a specialist chemical processit
remediation company with the capability and technical knowledge to remediate the site safely, at their

x In accordance with the requirementsuoWPa$ RI WKH (QYLURQPHQWDO 3URWI
Contaminated Land Inspection Strategy, former waste disposal sites across the County will be consic
condition of each assessed as necessary in due course. The Couitsl hgsmasias to fund its liabilities
for any remediation works deemed necessary on a best estimate basis at the balance sheet date.

Current Provisiongd Accumulated Absences

The provision for accumulated abseB0&$lnis£2,65k (£1,89k in D15/16).

Shorterm accumulating compensated absences refetddhagresfiployees receive as part of their contract
employment, entitlement to which is built up as they provide services to the Authority. The most sign
covered by this headirapizual leave entitlement which employees buildyupaakThe Code requires iz

cost of providing holidays and similar meeétognised when employees render service that increases
entitlement to future compensated absences. As a result, the Authority is required to acarueai@ any
earned but not taken atN3arch each year. Under previous accounting arrangements, no such accrual was
The Government has issued regulations that mean local autimbyitieguaredcoto fund annual leave entitlemer
and similar hefits when they are used, rather than when employees earn the benefits. Amounts are trans
Accumulated Absences Account until the benefits are used.

Current ProvisionsProvision for Impairment Losses (Bad Debts)

Amounts due to the Cdimasie been reduced by estimated provisions for impairment losses.
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22. LONG TERM BORROWING

Interest Rates 2017 2016
Analysis Minimum % Maximum % £000 £000
By Loan Type (Fixed Rate)
Salix Finance (Energy Efficiency) Interest Free 378 81
Government (PWLB) 0.39 9.50 230,810 232,410
Other financial institutions 448 4.58 18,950 18,950
Welsh Government Interest Free 860 460
Total 250,998 251,901
By Maturity
Between 1 and 2 years 105 1,654
Between 2 and 5 years 13,362 10,027
Between 5 and 10 years 14,129 14,430
More than 10 years 223,402 225,790
Total 250,998 251,901

23. USABLE RESERVES

The Council maintains a number of reserves on the Balance Sheet. Some are held for statutory reasons, some are
needed to comply with proper accounting practice and others have been set up voluntarily to earmark resources for
future spending plans. Movements in the Authority’s usable reserves are detailed in the Movement in Reserves
Statement and in note 8.

Council Fund
The Council fund balance of £10,953k represents the value of unearmarked reserves available to the Authority
(£10,144k in 2015/16).

Housing Revenue Account
The housing revenue account reserve cumulative balance of £1,642k (£1,517k in 2015/16) includes the 2016/17 HRA
surplus of £125k (£7k (surplus) in 2015/16), as detailed on page 68.

Capital Receipts Reserve
The capital receipts reserve contains receipts from the sale of assets which have yet to be used to finance capital or to
repay debt.

Capital Grants Unapplied
Capital grants unapplied are amounts received but not yet applied to finance capital expenditure.
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Earmarked Reserves
Total earmarked resenfg2052% (£27,745k in 2015/16) include:

X

Service balanceasepresents service departments carrying forward unspent funding for use in the su
financial year éduother relevant specific income / underspeoifisronature that extend over more thar
one year.

School balancetthis sum represents the element of balances released under the delegation of b
schools which remained unspent at the ericafdcred year.

Single status / equal psccumulated reserve to furttier oneff workforce costs along with the final
phase®fpay protection arising from implementttesingle status agreement

Investment in Organisational chaageumiated reserve to fund the costs of remodeling services
H,QYHVW WR 6DYHY W\SH SURMHFWYV

Budget Strateggiccumulated reserve for use in balancing budgets over the medium term.

Benefits Equalisatigihis reserve was introduced to mitigate agaiotsnie volatility in Housing Benefit
Subsidy.

County Electioseserve to fund the costs of future elections

Supporting peopithis reserve has been established to mitigate the impact of proposed reductions
funding by Welsh Government.

Untary Development Plaiunding for costs associated with finalising, and then implementing, the
Development Plan

Waste Dispossf UHVHUYH XVHG SUHGRPLQDQWO\ WR IXQG )OLQW
Wales Residual Waste Teatfartnership.

Winter Maintenangeserve set up as a contingency in the event of severe weather conditions

Insuranc®eservess YDULRXV ,QVXUDQFH UHODWHG UHVHUYHV LLQFO
insurance asot all riskareexerndl/insure.

Flintshire Traineegeserve to futide Flintshire Trainee programme.
Kitchen Refurbishmergserve to fund kitchen refurbishments at various schools.
Rent Income Shorttaitserve created to mitigate loss of income frompnojpsttyatent

Schools Kitchen Ventilatoeserveto fundfeasibility worlsnsidering the netxd upgrade kitchen
ventilatiogystemat various schools.

Customer Service Strategyp enable the roll out of the Customer Services Strategyndide will i
improvements to Connect Centres, impreseyiselfacilities and investmeatsoftware.

Capita Onea regiondT systernoldingnanagement informatoorschools hosted by FlintsAing funds
held at the end of the financial yeerdss of costs incurred will be spenvenmdgethe serviceduture
years.

Public Sector Broadband (PSf/gssist in the introduction of Learning in Digital Wales.

Supervision Feeshis reserve is used for work carried out by the Devaboprokefieam in supervising
works on housing developments in connection with the adoption of roads and/or other related w
necessary.

Transportation Revigwfunda review of tieaytransport servgcare delivered.
LMS Curriculugfiundingsiused for transitional costs relating to school modersidatiols.for

Grants & Contributiofisarious grants and contributions from external providers that must be s
accordance with associated restrictions on use.
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Movement between earmarked reserves is summarised in tablllowing

24. UNUSABLE RESERVES
The details of movements on unusable reserves are:as follows
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Revaluation Reserve

The revaluation reserve contains the gains made by the Authority arising from increases in the value of its property,
plant and equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:

« revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost
« used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or
. disposed of and the gains are realised.

The revaluation reserve records unrealised revaluation gains arising since 1st April 2007, the date that the Reserve was
created. The reserve is matched by non-current assets within the balance sheet - the resources are not available for
financing purposes.

2017 2016

£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1st April 55,016 57,858
Upward revaluation of assets 13,654 2,862
Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not
charged to the surplus/deficit on the provision of services (5,705) (3,214)
Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets not
posted to the surplus/deficit on the provision of services 7,949 (352)
Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost
depreciation (2,721) (1,938)
Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped (547) (552)
Amount written off to the capital adjustment account (3,268) (2,490)
Balance at 31st March 59,697 55,016
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Pensions Reserve

The pensions reserve is an adjustment account that absorbs the timing differences arising from different
for post employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions.

The Authority accounts for post empidgnefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure- 8tatemen
benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service. The liabilities recognised in the accounts &
reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment ratuas®orces set aside to meet the costs.

6WDWXWRU\ DUUDQJHPHQWY UHTXLUH WKRVH EHQHILWY HDUQF
contributions to the pension fund, or eventually pays any pensions for which it hsibilitye dthes sjedit
balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by pa:
employees and the resources the Authority has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements w
fundingvill have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid

Accumulated Absences Account

The accumulated absences account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the council
from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, e.g. annual leawk fentdednent «

at 3%tMarch. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the council fund balance is neutralised by
from the account.
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Capital Adjustment Account

The capital adjustment account absorbs the timing difference arising from the different arrangements for accounting for
the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets
under the statutory provisions. The account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as
depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement (with reconciling postings from the revaluation reserves to convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis).
The account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Authority as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction

and enhancement.

The account contains accumulated gains and losses on investment properties and revaluation gains accumulated on
property, plant and equipment before 1 April 2007, the date that the revaluation reserve was created to hold such gains.

Note 8 provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the account, apart from those involving the

revaluation reserve.

Balance at 1st April

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to the

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement:

- Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets

- Revaluation losses on PP&E

- Amortisation of intangible assets

- Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute

- Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the
gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement

- Movements in the market value of investment properties debited or credited
to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement

Adjusting amounts written out of the revaluation reserve
Net written out amount of the cost of non-current assets consumed in the year

Capital financing applied in the year:
- Use of the capital receipts reserve

- Capital grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure statement that have been applied to capital financing

- Intangible Assets - Additions

- Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment charged against

the Council Fund and HRA balances
- Capital expenditure charged against the council fund and HRA balances
Long term debtors adjustments - Loan Repayments

Balance at 31st March
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2017
£000

2,329

17,104

6,232
12,855

340,435

£000

380,112

(78,206)

38,529

2016
£000 £000

504,216

(44,870)
(38,643)

(181)
(91,998)

(2,113)

906

(176,899)

2,490

(174,409)

2,066

28,982
14

7,664
11,636
(57)
50,305

380,112
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Financial Instruments Adjustment Account

The financial instruments adjustment account (FIAA) provides a balancing mechanism between the different rates at
which gains and losses (such as premiums on the early payment of debt) are recognised under the Code and are
required by statute to be met from the Council fund. Again, the reserve is matched by borrowings and investments
within the balance sheet, and the resources are not available for financing purposes.

2017 2016

£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1st April (7,177) (7,545)
Premiums incurred in the year and charged to the comprehensive income
and expenditure statement 0 0
Proportion of premiums incurred in previous financial years to be charged
against the Council Fund balance in accordance with statutory
requirements 363 368
Amount by which finance costs charged to the Comprehensive income
and expenditure statement are different from finance costs chargeable in
the year in accordance with statutory requirements 363 368
Balance at 31st March (6,814) (7,177)

Deferred Capital Receipts

Deferred capital receipts are loans that the Council has made to individuals on the affordable homes register. The loan
is the individual's deposit to assist in the purchase of an affordable home in the county. The loan is repayable on the
earlier of, when the house is sold or 25 years. The reserve holds the recognised future receipt.

2017 2016

£000 £000

Affordable homes deposits 98 98
98 98

25. CASH FLOW STATEMENT - OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The net cash flows from operating activities of £6,027k outflow (£70,537k inflow in 2015/16) include the following interest elements:

2017 2016
£000 £000
Interest received 155 391
Interest paid (13,159) (14,852)
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26 CASH FLOW STATEMENWVESTING ACTIVITIES

27. CASH FLOW STATEMENNANCING ACTIVITIES

28. OFFICERS' REMUNERATION
Senior Employee Emoluments

The Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014 requires disclosure (in £500@tehauntiipgisof employees
whose remunerati@ill sums paid to or receivaptbe employee including payments on termination of employ
expense allowances chargeable to tax, and the moridyenaliits exceeded £60,000he band values do not
include employer pension contribuiohsnns for schools include aitaime&id schools including Voluntary Aidec
and Foundation Schools.
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Some posts occupied are paid in accordance with nationally agreed Soulbury terms and conditions. Governing Bodies
have some discretion in setting the salaries of Head teachers, within the parameters of the School Teacher's pay and
conditions 2015.

The Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014 also requires disclosure of the individual remuneration details for
senior employees by post where the salary is between £60,000 and £150,000 and by name where the salary exceeds
£150,000. Senior employees for the purpose of the disclosure are the chief executive, chief officers, statutory officers
and persons for whom the chief executive is directly responsible.

The salaries of the Chief Executive and the Chief Officer team have been set by full Council in accordance with the
Council's Pay Policy Statement (available on the Council's website). There has been no variation to pay rates during
the year other than inflationary increases for implementation of nationally agreed annual pay awards to reflect the
increased cost of living. No bonuses, taxable expense allowances, compensation payments or other taxable benefits
were received by Chief Officers.

2016/17 2015/16
Employer's Employer's
Pension Pension
Post Title Remuneration Contributions Remuneration Contributions
Note £ £ £ £
Chief Executive 1 132,545 33,680 131,233 31,704
Chief Officer Governance 1 87,567 22,251 83,640 20,375
Chief Officer Education & Youth 2 93,236 23,691 95,691 23,310
Chief Officer Social Care 2 93,236 23,691 95,691 23,310
Chief Officer Community & Enterprise 91,688 23,298 86,700 21,120
Chief Officer Planning & Environment 87,567 22,251 83,640 20,375
Chief Officer Streetscene & Transportation 87,567 22,251 83,640 20,375
Chief Officer Organisational Change 1 87,567 22,251 83,640 20,375
Chief Officer Organisational Change 2 87,567 22,251 83,640 20,375
Corporate Finance Manager (Section 151 Officer) 73,336 18,635 58,734 14,308
Senior Manager (HR & OD) 63,890 16,235 56,281 14,301
985,766 250,485 942,530 229,928

Note 1 : Remuneration does not include any amounts received for;
a) Returning Officer and Deputy Returning Officer roles at elections (costs for national elections reimbursed by respective Government) and

b) Clerk and Deputy Clerk roles to the North Wales Fire and Rescue Authoirty (costs reimbursed).
Note 2 : Former Directors receiving pay protection under the Council's Organisational Change policy.

The Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014 also require disclosure of the ratio of remuneration between the
Chief Executive and the median full time equivalent earner (£17,169); for 16/17 this was 1:7.72 (for 2015/16 this was
1:7.73).
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Exit Packages

The Council is required to disclose (in £20k bandings up to £100k with £50k bandings thereafter) the numbers of exit
packages agreed and the cost of the packages to the authority in the financial year. Exit costs arising in 2016/17 which
the authority is committed to incurring at the 31st March 2017, but paid after this date, are also included in the
disclosure. Information is included for all maintained schools including Voluntary Aided and Foundation Schools.

The totals disclosed are made up of redundancy payments made to the individual and any payments made by the
Council to the pension fund when an employee retires early without actuarial reduction in pension in accordance with
the Council’'s Discretionary Compensation Policy. The costs of which have been met from an earmarked reserve set up
specifically to fund the costs of organisational change.

Exit Package Cost Compulsory Other Departures Agreed  Total Exit Packages by Total Exit Packages in
Band Redundancies Cost Band Each Band
2016/17 201516 2016/17 201516 2016/17 2015116 2016/17 2015/16
No. No. No. No. No. No. £ £
£0 - £20,000 58 44 21 63 79 107 548,945 633,710
£20,001 - £40,000 14 12 15 15 29 27 845,785 733,521
£40,001 - £60,000 3 3 1 4 282,107 175,121
£60,001 - £80,000 3 4 139,848 280,348
£80,001 - £100,000 0 1 0 3 0 4 0 342,382
£100,001 - £150,000 0 0 1 1 1 110,647 112,995
75 61 42 86 17 147 1,927,332 2,278,077

In July 2015 the ‘Management of the Workforce Change Programme’ report to the Corporate Resources Overview and
Scrutiny Committee reviewed the Council’s performance against the recommendations of the Wales Audit Office in a
national study of public sector practice and performance. The review showed that the Council had developed effective
local practice and policy that represented value for money.

29. MEMBERS' ALLOWANCES

Allowances totaling £1,339k were paid directly to members of the Council, and on their behalf in 2016/17 (£1,340k in
2015/16).

2017 2016
£000 £000
Basic allowance 929 927
Special responsibility allowance 247 247
Employer's national insurance 84 79
Employer's superannuation 63 68
Members' expenses 16 19
1,339 1,340

Expenses include costs of travel, subsistence, telephones and refreshments.
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The allowances paid fall into the following bands :-

2017 2016
Allowance Band Number of Number of
Members Members
£0-£9,999 0 0
£10,000 - £14,999 39 39
£15,000 - £19,999 12 12
£20,000 - £24,999 8 8
£25,000 - £29,999 3 3
£30,000 - £34,999 5 4
£35,000 - £39,999 1 2
£40,000 - £44,999 1 1
£45,000 - £49,999 0 0
£50,000 - £54,999 0 0
£55,000 - £59,999 0 0
£60,000 - £64,999 1 1
70 70

30. RELATED PARTIES

The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties - bodies or individuals that have the
potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or influenced by the Council. Disclosure of these
transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Council might have been constrained in its ability to
operate independently or might have the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Authority.

Welsh and Central Government

Welsh Government exerts significant influence through legislation and grant funding — it is responsible for providing the
statutory framework, within which the Council operates, provides the majority of its funding in the form of grants and
prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Council has with other parties such as council tax bills and
housing benefits. Grants received from Welsh and other Government departments are set out in notes 6 and 20.

Members
Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating policies. The total of members
allowances paid in 2016/17 is shown in note 29.

The Council appoints members to some external charitable and voluntary bodies, or Members have disclosed a link to
organisations, public bodies and authorities. The total transactions with bodies under this heading during 2016/17 are
as follows:

. Payments £801k (£598k in 2015/16)
« Receipts £21k  (£29k in 2015/16)
« Amounts owed by the Council £54k  (£1k in 2015/16)

« Amounts owed to the Council £0k  (E1kin 2015/16)

Members have declared an interest or relationship in companies or businesses which may have had dealings with the
Council. The total payments made to companies under this heading during 2016/17 and amounts outstanding at 31st
March are as follows:

. Payments £110k (£135k in 2015/16)
. Receipts £0k  (£Okin 2015/16)
« Amounts owed by the Council £21k  (£27k in 2015/16)
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No Members have declared personal transactions with the Council in 2016/17. The total transactions under this heading
during 2015/16 were receipts of £20k.

A Member has submitted a ‘Candidate Site’ for inclusion within the Local Development Plan. The Council undertook a
‘Call for Candidate Sites’ whereby any interested persons could put forward land to be considered by the Council as
potential sites for inclusion within the Plan. There is no guarantee that the site will be included within in the Plan.

The personal interests of all members are recorded in the Public Register of Members’ Interests, in accordance with the
law and the Council's Code of Conduct. The Register is available for public inspection by contacting Chief Officer
Governance at Flintshire County Council, County Hall, Mold.

Officers

Senior Officers have declared, as required and where appropriate, an interest or relationship in companies, voluntary,
charitable, or public bodies which receive payments from the Council. The total transactions with such bodies during
2016/17 are as follows:

« Payments £392k (£374k in 2015/16)
« Amounts owed by the Council £0k  (£24kin 2015/16)

Community Asset Transfer (CAT)
A number of Members and Senior Officers have declared interests in local community groups involved in the Council's
CAT scheme. The scheme involves leasehold transfer (at nominal value) of specific Council assets to organisations
with a social purpose who plan to use the assets for the benefit of the local community. The assets have remained on
the Council’'s balance sheet and have a combined net book value of £10,184k. In some circumstances the Council has,
or plans to, issue capital grants for any necessary capital works. Transactions with these groups during 2016/17 are:

e Grants awarded £95k

e Grants paid in advance £33k
e Payments £44k
e Amounts owed by the Council £4k

Other Public Bodies

Clwyd Pension Fund
The Council is the administering authority for the Clwyd Pension Fund. Details of transactions with the Clwyd Pension
Fund are provided within the Pension Fund accounts on page 95 onwards.

Teachers Pensions Agency
The pension costs charged are the contribution rate set by the Department for Education on the basis of a notional fund.
Teacher’s pension details are set out in note 45.

North Wales Police and Crime Commissioner and North Wales Fire Authority

Police and Crime Commissioners and Fire and Rescue Authorities set their own charges to council tax payers which are
then included in the council tax bill - these charges are known as the precept. Total precepts and levies paid to the
Office of the North Wales Police and Crime Commissioner and the North Wales Fire and Rescue Authority amounted to
£22,093k (£21,629k in 2015/16).

Community / Town Councils
Total precepts paid to the 34 community/town councils amounted to £2,591k (£2,487k in 2015/16).
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Betsi Cadwaladr University Local Health Board:

Transactions with Betsi Cadwaladr University Local Health Board for related healthcare activities during 2016/17 were

as follows:

. Payments

« Receipts

« Amounts owed by the Council
« Amounts owed to the Council

Welsh Joint Education Committee:

. Payments

« Receipts

« Amounts owed by the Council
« Amounts owed to the Council

Welsh Local Government Association:

. Payments

« Receipts

« Amounts owed by the Council
« Amounts owed to the Council

31. AUDIT FEES

£1,710k
£6,424k
£505k

£2,531k

£341k
£10k
£340k
£0k

£101k
£10k
£1k
£0k

£4,930k in 2015/16)
£1,577k in 2015/16)
£350k in 2015/16)
£137k in 2015/16)

P

£521k in 2015/16)
£6k in 2015/16)
£0k in 2015/16)
£1k in 2015/16)

P

£104k in 2015/16)
£6k in 2015/16)
£0k in 2015/16)
£3k in 2015/16)

P

Total audit and inspection fees due during the year amounted to £363k (£394k in 2015/16). External audit services were

provided by Wales Audit Office.

Fees for the Statement of Accounts

Fees for the Local Government Measure

Fees for grants
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2017 2016
£000 £000
210 219
100 103
53 72
363 394
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32. AGENCY SERVICES

Flintshire County Council is one of six partners within the North Wales Trunk Road Agency (NWTRA), the other partners
being Anglesey, Conwy, Denbighshire, Gwynedd and Wrexham Councils. The Streetscene & Transportation Portfolio
within Flintshire County Council undertakes trunk road work on behalf of NWTRA for the Welsh Government.
Reimbursement for work carried out under the Trunk Road Agency Agreement amounted to £2,481k (£1,971k in
2015/16).

The six North Wales councils act as agents of Welsh Government in providing recyclable loans under the Houses into
Homes Scheme in perpetuity, for the repair of properties which have been long term vacant, with the aim of bringing
them back into use. Flintshire County Council is the lead/banker authority for the North Wales region and responsible for
administering the fund. No further income was received from Welsh Government during 2016/17 (£0k in 2015/16) with
gross payments against the brought forward sum amounting to £355k (£405k in 2015/16), with repayments of £325k
made during the year, combining to a net total payments of £30k. Of which Flintshire County Council received and
issued £280k of loans (£155k in 2015/16) with £325k being repaid (£25k in 2015/16).

Welsh Government has provided funding to Flintshire County Council to provide additional recyclable loan products
which are treated as agency arrangements in the Council’s accounts. The first product is a second Houses into Homes
scheme with the funding to be returned in 14 years’ time, the purpose is the same purpose as outlined above. £0k was
received in 2016/17 (£313k 2015/16) and no loans have been issued so far. The second product, called Home
Improvement Loans, for works in making a residential properties safe warm and/or secure, again with the funding to be
retuned in 14 years’ time. £0k was received in 2016/17 (£313k 2015/16). £17k has been granted in loans in year (£31k
in 2015/16).

Flintshire County Council acts as an agent on behalf of Welsh Government in receiving and distributing various grants
for the North Wales region. Bus Services Support Grant to support bus and community transport services in the region.
Total received was £6,748k, of which £593k was Flintshire’s share included in Flintshire’s accounts (£6,710k in 2015/16,
£582k in Flintshire’s accounts). Similarly the Young Person’s Travel Discount Scheme total received £2,400k with £90k
being Flintshire’s share included in Flintshire’s accounts (£1,198k in 2015/16, £58k in Flintshire’s accounts) also a grant
for Restoration of Key Local Bus Routes total received £300k with £155k being Flintshire’s share included in Flintshire’s
accounts (new arrangement in 1617). Single point of access grant a regional programme for ease of customer access
to Social and Health Care services. Total received was £230k with £55k being Flintshire’s share included in Flintshire’s
accounts (£200k in 2015/16, £59k in Flintshire’s accounts).

Flintshire County Council acts as agents on behalf of water companies collecting water and sewerage charges from
tenants living in Council owned dwellings in 2016/17 £3,473k was collected (£3,453k 2015/16). The Council also acts
as agent in arranging and collecting household contents insurance for tenants belongings on their behalf if they wish, in
2016/17 £101k was collected (£104k in 2015/16), and collects heating charges from tenants living in Council owned
communal buildings, in 2016/17 £161k was collected (£205k in 2015/16).

33. NATIONAL HEALTH SERVICES (WALES) ACT 2006

The Council has an agreement with Wrexham County Borough Council and the Betsi Cadwaladr University Health
Board, pursuant to Section 33 of the National Health Service (Wales) Act 2006, for the provision of an integrated
community equipment service under a pooled fund arrangement. The service is provided through staff of Flintshire
County Council (as host partner) from Unit 3, Hawarden Industrial Estate, Hawarden.

2017 2016
Partnership £000 £000
Gross expenditure 1,034 1,129
Gross income (1,100) (1,185)
(Surplus) / deficit for year (66) (56)

Contribution to Budget
Flintshire County Council 288 319
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Unit 3, which is situated within Flintshire, is jointly owned by Flintshire County GmahdWrghasdEounty
Borough Council (49.75%), and has beeratglyetlk; theSUHPLVHY DUH LQFOXGHG LQ
balance sheet (as host partner):

34. JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

Flintshire County Council is involved in various joint arrangements/partnerships with neighbouring
Councils, being :

x North East Wales Community Equipment @enwaexham)

x North East Wales Food WastgwittilConwy and Denbigh@bixe)

x North East Wales Sensory Support Getvieeexham and Denbighshire)

x North East Wales Emergency Bartiywlith Wrexhafieadand Denbighshire)

x North Wales Adoption SefwitteAnglesey, Conwy, Denbighshire, Gwynedd andM&adxham

x North Wales Residual Waste Treatment (Rijactlesey, Conwy, Denbighshire and Gwynedd)

x North Wales Procureti®artnershigvith Anglesey, Conwy, DenbiglishigGwynedd and Wrexham)

x North Wales Emergency Planning $eitiaeglesey, Conwy, Denbighshire, Gwynedd and Wrexham)
x Welsh Penalty Processing Partn@shipaiuthorities across Wales)

x GalwGofaltregional Telecare service@ithanglesey, Conwy (lead), and Gwynedd)

x GwE[North Wales Regional Sdiffettiveness alrdprovemegervick(with Anglesey, Conwy, Denbighshire,
Gwyned@eadind Wrexham)

x Clwydian Range & Dee Valley Abedstdnding Natural Beauty (A@iB)efbighsh{teadand Wrexhgm

Flintshire County Council is the host partner for the North East Wales Community Equipment Service (d
areprovided inote33), theNorth East Wales Sensory Suppuite&seh®&lorth Wales Residual Waste Treatmen
Project (NWRWTP), tredNorth Wales Emergency Planning.Service

Separate (joint committee) financial statements are prep&dPARWAIP (www.nwrwip.grg GWE
(www.gwynedd.goy.akd Clwydian Range & Dee Valley A@NBdenbighshire.gov.lkje 201617 joint
committee statements record

JOLQWVKLUH &RXQW\ &RXQFLOYV VKDUH RI WKH LQFRPH DQG H]
the Comprehensive IncondeEapenditure Statement in line with the accounting policy for Joint Committees.
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. OTHER FUNDS ADMINISTERED BY THE AUTHORITY

The Council administers a trust fund on behalf of Optec D.D. (UK) Limiprdviddsefinancial support to the
youth exchange scheme between Flintshire County Council and Murata and Kuga Cho in Japan. The fL
3tMarch 20AwasE6 1k (£74 in 209/16) and is not included in the balance sheet.

Flintshire County Couacit as lead authority in the administration of the Welsh Church Acts Fund on |
Denbighshire, Flintshire and Wrexham. Income received from investments, net of central management
apportioned to each authority to be used to givdighaatord with the stated objectives.Ma@1207 the

fund balanceast57 & (£5546& in205/16).

The Social Services portf@iacial Services for Adults Section maintain individual bank accounts for servi
living in the community whauaable to cope with their financial affairs; individual members of the Deputys
are approved to act as corporate appointee with the Department for Work and Pensions for each service
amount held by the CouncilsaMaich2017 was £3,91% in 408separat@accounts (£4,148k in 4t&ounts in
205/16).

36 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

x In accordance with the provisions of Part 2A of the Environmental Protecdod Awt CeRMcCil's
Contaminatedind Inspection Strategy, fornsée digposal sites within the county, will beredrasid the
condition of eaaksessed in due course. The assessments may conclude that liabilitytfeoee yiradl ou
of any necessagmediation works will be the Council's responsibility.

x FurthertoKkH SURYLVLRQ LQ UHODWLRQ WR VXK the COUNcilGECKgHiBad tHad
any future payments made by MMe wilhde at the reduced rat&%f &hd has createdemmmarked
reserve to fund the2® that the Counciaiy future claim settled will need to fund. The projection of f
claims is uncertain because of the latent nature of many of the claims that MMI is still receiving.
subject to review at least once every 12 months by the schenteradbesistderevision of tHevy
upwards to an aggregate levél%f @hen modelling projected outcomes for the solffesft MM, the
administrator indicated that the levy could rangelbétveawh34.

x Flintshire is the legislative sgocébody in respect of all abuse claims relating to the former Clwyd
&RXQFLO $ QXPEHU RI FODLPV FRQWLQXH WR EH EURXJKW
insurers were not on cover and so the Council may need to fuddianyhsitics successful.

x Anemployeé&s claiming against the Counai iBmployment Tribwaaich will be heard in the next financia
year. Based on the outcomes of the cases the Council could have to pay all, some or none of the cla

x The Courlalong with other welslalLAathoritiegss DQ PLQWHUHVWHG SDUW\Y LQ D
group of care home providers against 21 out of 22 Local Health Boards in relation to their costs
nursing care and the mechanism fiogfaace. The cases complexandan appeal to tisupreme Court
washeardn April 201tejudgemer{issued in August 20difed that the NHS must retake their decision ¢
rates of pay paid to nursing care providers and that the NHS mustou#gl for @@mgonal care provided as
part of nursingcargvV D UHVXOW WKH &RXQFLO ZRQTW KDYH WR SD\ LC

37. CONTINGENT ASSETS

Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 allows legal agreements as part df thinning
commits the developer to undertake workimarcontributions towards a variety of infrastructure or services
affordable housing scheme called 'Shared Equity' is one such commitment, the developer makes a numb
available fgpurchase by those on the affordable housing register at 70% of the market value. The rem
share in the properties is transferred to the Council in the form of a legal charge against the propegy. At
future the homeowner caremdhe Council's 30% share, or sell the property. The first call being a sale to
the affordable housing register, if after a set period the property does not sell it can be sold on the oper
probable that the Council will bientsfg form of capital receipts in the future from these agreements, howe
receipt must be used for the provision of affordable housing under the legal agreement.
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMEN

38. CRITICAL JUIEMENTS AND ASSUMPTIONS MADE

In preparing the Statement of Accounts, the Council has had to make judgements, estimates and as:
certain items that affect the application of its policies and reported levels of assets, liabilities, incorae and
estimates and assded assumptions have been based on historical experience, current trends and othe
factors that are considered to be reasonable and are used to inform the basis for judgements about the ¢
of assets and liabilities, where thesetaradily available from other sources. However, because these car
determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from those assumptions and estimat

The significant accounting estimates within the Staternantofefaie tmnrcurrenassets and the impairment
of financial assetstimates and underlying assumptions are regularly reviewed. Changes in accounting es
adjustments of the carrying amount of an asset or a liability, or the peroadit aftheumption of an asset, that
results from the assessment of the present status of, and expected future benefits and obligations as
assets and liabiliti€3hanges to accounting estimates are recognised in the period inimaiehishewsed if
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affec
and future periods.

The critical accounting judgements made by the Council which have a smynifreahbaffeied statements are:

x Future Levels of Government Funding and Levels of Hbseiwese levels of funding for local authorities h
a high degree of uncertainty. The Council has set aside amounts in provisions, working baances
which it believes are appropriate based on local circumstances including its overall budget size, risks,
budget estimates, major initiatives being undertaken, budget assumptions, other earmarked reserves
DQG WKH &R L hdnci Unanagement. The Council has published a Medium Term
6WUDWHJ\ ZKLFK FDQ EH IRXQG RQ WKH &RXQFLOYV ZHEVLWH

x ProvisionstThe Council is required to exercise judgement in assessing whether a potential liability
accounted for as a provision or contingent liability. In calculating the level of provisions the Council a
MXGJHPHQW WKH\ DUH PHDVXUHG DW WKH &RXQFLOYfV EHVW
Balance Sheet date.

x Investment Properti#$he Council classifies investment properties in accordance with the requiremer
Code of Practice, that being that assets are held solely for rental income of capital appreciation. A:
such properties involves estegcjudgement, which could be subject to a difference in interpretation.

x Asset Valuations7 KH &R XQFLO YDOXHV LWV +RXVLQJ 6 WRRKRLBD\OHWVRK
The valuation methodology applied is the Adjusted Vacaonh R@dsesgknown as the Beacon Approach
There is currently no guidance in Wales that specifically defines the components within the methodo
which rely on professional judgments particular to local circumstances.

The approach seekstoblifpa D YDOXH IRU WKH DVVHW EDVHG RQ WKH
SRVVHVVLRQY RI WKH DVVHW ZKLFK LV WKHQ DGMXVWHG WR
underlying principles of this approach are:
x A repreentative asset is normally used as the basis for valuing a set of similar assets.
x (KH DVVHW{fV )DLU 9DOXH PDUNHW YDOXH LV GHWHL
SURSHUWLHYV 7KLV SURYLGHV D pnYDFDQW SRVVHVVLRQT
x  The market value d§usted by a factor to reflect the difference between private sector rents / yit
social housing rents / yields. This is intended to reflect the differential cash flows that w
between the two types of landlord given that there igeaasittimgthe property and that any
development value is to be ignored as continuation of the existing use is assumed.
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Accounting for arrangements containing a lease (embeddedueagebe year the Coemtédred into an
arrangement where supply and maintenance of all vehicles, along with fleet management, would be t
Essential Fleet Services (EA®)e Council has reviewed the appropriate accounting guidance, <
professional advice, anttkemled that this arrangement contains embedded operating leases

Community Asset Transfers (CAT®)Ive leasehold transfer (at nominal value) of specific Council ass
organisations with a social purpose who plan to use the assets fafttiee becaficommunity. The lease
agreements have been considered; whilst operational risk and reward transfers to the communit
&RXQFLOYV YLHZ LV WKDW WKH ULVN DQG UHZDUG RI RZQHL
aVVHWV KDYH UHPDLQHG RQ WKH &RXQFLOYVY EDODQFH VKHHMW

The key sources of estimation uncertainty identified by the Council which have a significant effect on
statements are:

X

Retirement Benefit Obligatiaihe Council recognises and discltsaetirement benefit obligation in
DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK WKH PHDVXUHPHQW DQG SUHVHQWDWLRQI
of the net pension liability depends on a number of complex judgements and estimates oelatirajeo the
used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes in retirement ages, mortality rates
returns on pension fund assets. A firm of actuaries is engaged to provide the Council with expert ad\
assumption® EH DSSOLHG &KDQJHV LQ WKHVH DVVXPSWLRQV FDQ
retirement benefit obligation. Further detail assessing the sensitivities of eétinmetedlos:4ie

Impairment of Financial Ass€ke Concil provides for the impairment of its receivables based on the age
and recoverability of each debt. A reasonable estimate of impairment for doubtful debts is provided
&ERXQFLOYY DFFRXQWYV DW WKH % bDt@dr@mid ciiate H \8/ndd Ceai thit RuCH:
allowance would be sufficient.

Property, Plant and Equiprs@ssets are depreciated over their useful life and reflect such matters as the
repairs and maintenance that will be incurtatiom tee individual types of asset, cost of replacement
assuming prudent maintenance, an estimate of the unexpired useful life of the asset.

Valuation techniques are used to determine the fair value of surplus assets, assets heldtfoestle an
properties. This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market partic
value such assets. As far as possible, assumptions are based on observable data. If observable
available the best informatiailable is used. Thus, estimated fair values may vary from actual prices th
EH DFKLHYHG LQ DQ DUPYV OHQJWK WUDQVDFWLRQ DW WKH LU

39 PROVISION FOR REPAYMENT OF EXTERNAL LOANS

Section 22 of the Local Authorities (Capital ahdaficeounting) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2008 reg
the Authority to set aside a minimum revenue provision (MRP) in respect of the financing of capital expen
in that year or in any financial year prior to that year. The asiderits 2811 Avere as follows:
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND CAPITAL FINANCING

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the following table (including the value of assets
acquired under finance leases), together with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital
expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Authority, the expenditure
results in an increase in the capital financing requirement, a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by
the Authority that has yet to be financed.

2017 2016
£000 £000

Capital Investment
Property, plant and equipment 50,997 48,094
Intangible assets 0 14
REFCUS 12,496 92,193
63,493 140,301

Sources of Finance
Capital receipts (2,329) (2,066)
Capital grants and contributions (17,104) (28,982)
Capital reserves / CERA (12,855) (11,649)
(32,288) (42,697)
Increase/(decrease) in capital financing requirement 31,205 97,604
Increase in supported borrowing 4,137 4,316
Increase in other (unsupported) borrowing 27,068 93,288
31,205 97,604

41. FUTURE CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31st March 2017, the Authority has entered into a number of contracts for the construction or enhancement of
Property, Plant and Equipment in 2017/18 and future years. Major commitments (over £1,000k) are:

Contract Details Contract Sum

£000
SHARP - Former Ysgol Delyn site, Mold 2,198
Total Commitments 2,198
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAIESTENITS

42. LEASING
Lessee Rentals
Finance Leases

The Council has acquired a number of items of vehicles, plant and equipment under finance leases
acquired under these leases are carried as Property, Plant and Equipment in theaB#ilaniodiSiag net
amounts:

The Council is committed tinganinimum payments under these leases comprising settlemeriemn the Ic
liability for the interest in the property, plant and equipment acquired by the Council, and finance cost
payable by the Council in future years while tihechaditis outstanding. The minimum lease payments are r
up of the following amountshafh£56% is due to be padiring the next 12 months kEBgQivalent for the
previous financial year).

The minimum lease payments and finance lease liabilities will be payable over the following periods:

Operating Leases
In 20147, operating lease rentals paid amdooifite8iiik (E984 in 204/16).
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Theminimum lease payments due under operating leases in future years are:

During 2016/17 the Council ent¢oath arrangement where supply and maintenance of all vehicles, along w
management, would be undertaken by Essential Fleet Servitass (&ff&)gement is considered to contai
embedded leases, diere payments to EFS are included in the figurel mbootconsidered practical to split
the payments into lease elements atehs@relements, therefore the total payments ardlsbdiganres are
adjusted to reflect the fact under thigeanent EFS are reimbursing the Council for existing vehicle leases ur
expiry.

Lessor Rentals
Operating Leases

The Council leases out property under operating leases largeli fde\esoparant purposes. |6P0Dlease
rentals receivaldmounteih £3,008 (£2,8418 in 204/16).

The minimum lease payments receivable under operating leases in future years are:

Finarce Leases
The Council does not lease out any properties on finance leases.

43 ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET ADOPTED

The Code of Practice on Local Authooiimtiag in ¢hUnited Kingdom 2017/1&btistroducednychanges,
amendments and interpretationsstingstandards whichUH PDQGDWRU\ IRU WKH &RX
beginning on or afterApri 2017 or later periods and weqldre changes to acdbQJ SROLFLHV |
accounts.
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments included in the balance sheet are made up of the following financial liabilities and as

Short terr@redita (note 19hcludes furthef5, B0k (2015/164,700kthat does maneet the definition tide
payable

Short ter@ebtors (note liB¥lude a furthel6,27K (2015/164,548kthat desnot meet the definition tbade
receivable

Within the Cash and Cash Equivalent line on the Balance Sheet firmanttlalabsessare offset:
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in relation to financial
instruments are made up as follows:

2017 2016
Financial Financial Financial Financial
Liabilities Assets Liabilities Assets
Liabilities Loans and Liabilities Loans and
Measured at Receivables Total Measured at Receivables Total
Amortised Amortised
Cost Cost
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Interest expense (13,401) (13,401) (13,727) 0 (13,727)
Interest payable and similar (13,401) 0 (13,401) (13,727) 0 (13,727)
charges
Interest income 141 141 0 290 290
Interest and investment 0 141 141 0 290 290
income
Net gain/(loss)for the year (13,401) 141 (13,727) 290

Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities Carried at Amortised Cost

Financial assets classified as loans and receivables and all non-derivative financial liabilities are carried in the Balance
Sheet at amortised cost. Their fair values in the table below have been estimated by calculating the net present value of
the remaining contractual cash flows at 31st March 2017, using the following methods and assumptions:

Loans borrowed by the Council have been valued by discounting the contractual cash flows over the whole life of
the instrument at the appropriate market rate for local authority loans.

The value of “Lender’s Option Borrower’s Option” (LOBO) loans have been increased by the value of the embedded
options. Lenders’ options to propose an increase to the interest rate on the loan have been valued according to a
proprietary model for Bermudan cancellable swaps. Borrower’s contingent options to accept the increased rate or
repay the loan have been valued at zero, on the assumption that lenders will only exercise their options when
market rates have risen above the contractual loan rate.

The fair values of other long-term loans and investments have been discounted at the market rates for similar
instruments with similar remaining terms to maturity on 31st March.

The fair values of finance lease liabilities have been calculated by discounting the contractual cash flows at the
appropriate AA-rated corporate bond yield.

No early repayment or impairment is recognised for any financial instrument.

The fair value of short-term instruments, including trade payables and receivables, is assumed to approximate to
the carrying amount given the low and stable interest rate environment.

The fair values are calculated as follows, the fair value hierarchy is explained within the Council's accounting policies

2017 2016
Fair Value Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value
Level Amount Amount

£000 £000 £000 £000

Financial Liabilities
PWLB 2 230,810 352,221 232,410 320,364
LOBOs 2 18,950 29,163 18,950 26,380
Lease payables 3 5,951 5,432 6,531 5,653
255,711 386,816 257,891 352,897

Financial Assets

Certificates of Deposits 2 0 0 3,006 3,008
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7KH 3:/% IDLU YDOXH LV KLIJKHU WKDQ WKH FDUU\LQJ DPRXQW |
fixed loans where the interespeyable is higher than the rates available for similar loans at the balance sh
This commitment to pay interest above current market rates increases the amount that the Authority wou
if the lender requested or agreed to earieepaf the loans. The same is the case for LOBOs, with the in
rates higher than the PWLB rates available at the balance sheet date, resulting in a higher fair value.

Disclosure of Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments

The ©uncil manages its Treasury Management risk by adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management
Services Code of Practice 2011, the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities, and
Investment Strategy as issuddish Govementinder section 15 (1) (a) of the Local Government Act 2003.
Authority must prepare (as a minimum) a Policy and Strategy Statgeemte@ortlichnd an annual outturn
report for submission to Cabinet, in accordance with FinanciditescedbheeWelsh Government also require
investment limits on specified (investments offering high security anddppddigg,imeestments (investments
with greater potential risk) and investments committed for more than one yeey Ipradeiiti@h indicators
must be set and Treasury Management Practices documenpeactidéegeclude financial risks such as Crec
Risk, Liquidity Risk and Market Risk.

7KH $XWKRULW\YV DFWLYLWLHYVY H[SRVH LW WR D YDULHW\ RI IL:
x Credt riskthe possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the authority

x  Liquidity riskthe possibility that the authority might not have funds available to meet its com
to make payments

x Market riskerthe possibility thaafinial loss might arise for the authority as a result of chang
such measures as interest rates and stock market movements.

7KH $XWKRULW\fV RYHUDOO ULVN PDQDJHPHQW SURJUDPPH IR
minimise pential effects on the resources available to fund services. Risk management is carried out |
treasury team, under policies approved by Flintshire County CBolicyStatiamerdnd StrategyFlintshire
provides written principlesvierath risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas,
interest rate risk, credit risk and the investment of surplus cash.

Risk- Liabilities

The Council has raised long term finance by either borrowing from then@WéBva LH@BOs.

x PWLBxThe majority of this debt is fixed rate, hence there is interest rate risk. If rates fall in the
Council will be paying higher than the current market rate, however, it is considered more benef
budget againty on future payments of interest in a low interest rate eawiabrdhbtarch 200.4.3%6
of PWLB dehbtasvariable rateeducing the interest rate risk but increasing budget uncertainty. Ther
option in the Treasury Management Stodiagy¥60mvariable debt if deemed appropriate. Liquidity risk
managed through the debt maturity profile and a prudential indicator which does not allow any mc
of debt to reach maturity in any one year.

x LOBOsAIl LOBOs have a fixedahisrterest for a period of between 12 and 23 months followed by a
fixed rate for the period of the loan, however the loan can be recalled by the lender after a certain fi
time. LOBOs are used because they have an interesttrate PWeB and this is balanced against th
risks of rates rising and the loan having to be repaid which-fiesnitsnigp rek at a time of higher interes:
rates. The amount of LOBOs is restr&f@dd londerm borrowing.

Analysis shows tifanterest rates rose by 1% the financial effect would be an increase in variable rate de
£290k

61



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Risk- Loans and Receivables

Long Term Investments

x Investments of more than 1 year are refasr@drgpecified investments because of the additional inter
rate risk. There is a limitoof for long term investments and additional procedures for authorisation
Corporate Finance Manager

x Deposits with banks and building societies slantarcyedit risk and this is managed by using three ra

agencies The Council usesfillowing criteriand investments are made subject to the monetary and
limits shown.

Analysis shows that if interest rates rose by 1% the financial effect would be an increase in ing8gkment in
If rates feby 1%, there would be a loss of income for the same amount.

Bonds-

Investments in bonds have limited credit risk because they are government backed but the market will fl
on current interest rates thus changing the fair value.

62



NOTESO® THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Other Receivables

Customers are required to make arrangements to pay outstanding monies due to the Council, based on
pay. Customers are requested to complete a financial assessment form antb aenfieguiredvriting the
amount agreed and the start date of the arrangement, and to make the Council fully aware of any c
surrounding their ability to pay which they wish to be taken intmakowutite assessment.

45 PENSIONS
Pensons- Teachers

7THDFKHUV HPSOR\HG E\ WKH &RXQFLO DUH P H-Eriaptbyel ddtimed\biérefit7 |
scheme, providing teachers with specified benefits upon their retirement. For accounting purposes it i
defined cdrnbution scheme as the Council is unable to identify its share of assets and liabilities with sufficie
The scheme is unfunded and the Department for Education uses a notional fund as the basis for cz:
HPSOR\HUVYt€ERQWULEXWLRQ UD

7KH &RXQFLO FRQWULEXWHYV WR WKH VFKHPH E\ PDNLQJ FRQ)
salaries. 18056/17 the Council paifB,334 (£7,944 in20K/16), which represeris.486 (average) tdachers'
pensionable pay (15481205/16). The contributions due in /A8%kfe estimated to be GbR, 16.2% of
WHDFKHUVY SHQVLRQDEOH SD\

The Council is not liable to the scheme for any other entities obligations under the plan.

In addition, the Council is responsible foriali pagsents relatingh award of discretionary-rptistment
benefits on early retirements (also knadaedsyeayg has awarded, together with the related increases, out
oftH WHUPV RI WK HaW &tEobrKed tbvoh a/debeBdftHbasas detailed in the following section

Pensions Other Employees

As part of their terms and conditions of employment of its officers the Council makes contributions towar:
postemployment benefit$fic®rs employed by @wincil are members of the Local Government Pension Sch
the Clwyd Pension Fund, administered locally by Flintshire County Council. This is a funded defined ben
scheme, meaning that the Council and employees pay contributiods ¢atoutated at a level intended to
EDODQFH WKH SHQVLRQYY OLDELOLWLHYV ZLWK LQYHVWPHQW D\

Discretionary pastirement benefisardedn early retirement are an unfunded defined benefit arrangement,
which liabilities are recognised whsrems are made. There are no plan assets built up to meet these p
liabilities.

The Clwyd Pension Fund is operated under the regulatory framework for the Local Government Pensior
the governance of the scheme is the responsibilitgiveydiiieension Fund Panel. Policy is determined
accordance with the Pension Fund Regulations.

The principal risks to the Council of the scheme are the longevity assumptions, statutory changes to
structural changes to the scheme (i.escliegavithdrawals from the scheme), changes to inflation, bond vyiel
the performance of the equity investments held by the scheme.

Further information regarding the Clwyd Pension Fund accountisppgesdétb 120, and in the Clwyd
Pensn Fund Annual Report which is available from www.clwydpensionfund.org.uk
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Transactions Relating to Retirement Benefits

The cost of retirement benefits is recognised in the net cost of services when they are earned by employees, rather than
when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge that is required to be made against Council tax
is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of retirement benefits is reversed out in the movement in
reserves statement. The transactions that have been made in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement
and the movement in reserves statement during the year are :-
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pensions Assets and Liabilities in Relation to Retirement Benefits RecognisBdlantgeSheet

7KH DPRXQW LQFOXGHG LQ WKH %DODQFH 6KHHW DULVLQJ IURF
as follows:

The liabilities total reflects the underlyitegriongmmitments that the Authority has in respect of retirement bt
due. The net liabitif395,05K is includkas part of the unusable reserves total on the Balance Sheet.

Reconciliation of present value of the scheme-liabilities:

Reconciliation of fair value of the Local Government Pension Scheme {LGPS) assets
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The Local Government Pension Scheme’s assets consist of the following categories:-

2017 2016
£000 £000 £000 £000
Equity investments:
UK Quoted* 0 0
Global Quoted* 45172 34,488
Global Unquoted 0 0
us* 0 0
Japan* 0 0
Europe* 0 0
Emerging Markets* 36,372 27,687
Frontier* 0 9,229
Far East* 0 0
81,544 71,404
Bonds:
Overseas Other 69,811 59,747
LDI* 136,689 110,750
206,500 170,497
Property:
UK* 26,399 14,572
Overseas 13,493 23,802
39,892 38,374
Cash:
Cash Accounts* 5,280 4,858
5,280 4,858
Alternatives:
Hedge Funds 51,625 49,060
Private Equity 58,665 52,946
Infrastructure 10,560 9,715
Timber & Agriculture 9,973 9,229
Commodities 0 0
DGF 122,609 79,662
253,432 200,612
586,648 485,745

* Denotes classes of assets that have a quoted market price in an active market.

The scheme maintains positions in a variety of financial instruments which exposes it to a variety of financial risks
including credit risk, counterparty risk, liquidity risk, market risk and exchange rate risk. Risk management procedures
are annually reviewed and focus on the unpredictability of financial markets and implementing restrictions to minimize
these risks. The current policy is to lower risk by diversifying investments across asset classes, investment regions and
fund managers.
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Basis for Estnating Assets and Liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an estimate c
that will be payable in future years dependant on assumptions about mogafitevatesetal The liabilities
have been assessed by Mercer Human Resource Consulting Limited, an independent firm of actuaries;
the County Council are based on the latest full valuation of the sienMaeh22B. The significant
assumptions used by the actuary are

Theestimation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the tabl.
sensitivity analyses below are calculated by altering relevant assumptions by the amount specified, whilst
all other vabies remain the same. This approach is not necessarily realistic, since some assumptions are
example, if the scenario is to show the effect of higher than expected inflation, it might be reasonable
nominal yields on corporatel® will be higher too. However, thésasalgtes one effect from another.

Increases in pensions are linked to increases to inflation (CPI) therefore the impact is the same for rate «
rate of increases in pensions.

Impact on Cash Flows

Regulations governing the scheme require actuaoal teahetcarried out every three years. Contributions
each employer are set having regard to their individual circumstances. The Regulations require the cont
VHW ZLWK D YLHZ WR WDUJHWLQJ WKdhs\arelsét Butl ifi the\aR@dvResion Fuhe
Funding Strategy Statement. The most recent valuation was carriectddara 20Bavhich showed a
shortfall of asts againgiabilities of £48&1llion as at that date; equivalent to a funding’/vel fKH VFKHF
employers are paying additional contributions over a peridyedrgincorder to meet the shortfall.

The total contributions expected to be made to the LGPS by the Council ifilMeegle2@isE23. M.
The dur#on of the defined benefit obligation fome@B8rs EByears, 2@17 (19 years 2016).
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HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT - INCOME AND EXPENDITURE AND MOVEMENT ON RESERVES STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31st March 2017

The HRA Income and Expenditure Statement shows the economic cost in the year of providing housing services in
accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from rents and
government grants. Authorities charge rents to cover expenditure in accordance with the legislative framework; this
may be different from the accounting cost. The increase or decrease in the year, on the basis on which rents are raised,

is shown in the Movement on the Housing Revenue Statement.

Expenditure

Repairs and maintenance
Management and supervision
Specialist Services

Rents, rates, taxes and other charges
Depreciation and impairment of non-current assets
Settlement Payment

Valuations - Dwellings

Debt management costs

Increase in bad debt provision

Total expenditure

Income

Dwelling rents (gross)

Non-dwelling rents (gross)

Charges for services and facilities
Reimbursement of Costs
Total income

Net cost of HRA services as included in the whole authority
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Other Operating Expenditure
Net (gain) / loss on the disposal of non-current assets
Admin. expenses on the net defined benefit liability

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
Interest payable and similar charges
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (see note 45)

Total (surplus) / deficit for the year on HRA services

2017
£000

43,485

30,200
352

31,909

15,349

£000

7,189
3,701
1,654

125
30,719
0
(266)
33
330

30,552
719
638

11,576

(1,672)
53

4,841
551

2016

£000 £000

6,723
4,733
1,392
1M
26,426
79,248
34,914
47

346
153,940

28,917
497
29,414
651
0
30,065

123,875

(559)
22

4,907
522

128,767

This statement shows how the surplus/deficit on the Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Statement for
the year reconciles to the surplus/deficit for the year on the Statutory Housing Revenue Account.

At 1st April
Surplus/(deficit) on the HRA income and expenditure statement

Total comprehensive income and expenditure

Adjustments between accounting and funding basis under regulations

Increase/(decrease) in year on the HRA

At 31st March
68

Note 2017 2016

(from core £000 £000
notes)

1,517 1,510

(15,349) (128,767)

(15,349) (128,767)

8 15,474 128,774

125 7

1,642 1,517




NOTES TO THE HOUSING REVENUE AQROONE AND EXPENDITSREEMET

1. LEGISLADON

The housing revenue account, in accordance with the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, reflec
obligation to account separately for local authority housing provision. It shows the major elements of ho
expendituremainteance, rent rebates, administradioth capital financing costs, and how these are met by re
subsidy and other income.

2. HOUSING STOCK

The type and numbedwellings 8 tMarch 20were-

3. RENT ARREARS

The rent®otalof£1,094 (£1,124in 20%/16) includes, in addition to the basic rent element, amouespelcteoin
water/sewerage rates, heating charges, household insurance, communal television licences and value
some garage rentals. These individual rent elements cannot be separately identified from the whole.



NOTES TO THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

4. NON-CURRENT ASSET ACCOUNTING
Capital Expenditure and Financing

Housing revenue account capital expenditure of £29,911k was incurred as follows; £100k - Land, £25,966k - Council
Dwellings, £3,058k - Assets Under Construction £787k — equipment, (£99,626k in 2015/16) . Financed as follows :-

Capital Capital Grants & Revenue Borrowing Total
Receipts Contributions Contributions
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Capital financing 836 5,485 11,566 12,024 29,911
836 5,485 11,566 12,024 29,911

Major Repairs Allowance (MRA)

Included within the capital grants and contributions total (£5,485k) is the 2016/17 MRA allocation figure of £5,050k
(£5,060k in 2015/16). The MRA allocation figure is included within the government grants — general line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. This Welsh Government grant was fully used in 2016/17 in
financing qualifying capital expenditure.

Capital Receipts

Gross capital receipts of £2,801k (£1,493k in 2015/16) were realised by way of the disposal of dwellings, land sales, and
shared ownership sales :-

2017 2016
£000 £000
Council dwellings 1,724 1,028
Shared Ownership Sales 130 0
Land sales 947 465
2,801 1,493

Depreciation

Straight line depreciation is provided for on all housing revenue account non-current assets with a finite useful life, other
than for non-depreciable land. The charge of £5,132k (£5,139% in 2015/16) is based on the 2016/17 opening net
balance sheet valuations (valuation list less cumulative depreciation), with assumed nil residual values.

2017 2016

£000 £000
Dwellings 5,030 5,043 (equating to the value of MRA)
Garages 20 17
Plant and equipment 82 79

5,132 5,139

Impairment Losses and Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute

A HRA impairment adjustment total of £25,584k was accounted for in 2016/17 (£21,186k in 2015/16). £24,307k relating
to capital expenditure on dwellings that did not have an impact on the valuation of the housing stock and £1,277k of
capital expenditure incurred in building 12 new council houses that have now been included within the housing stock
valuation (split £383k land £894k buildings). No revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute was accounted
forin 2016/17 (£79,248k in 2015/16) which is explained further on the next page.
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NOTES TO THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

5. MATERIAL ITEMS OF INCOME AND EXPEDNITURE
HRA Settlement Payment - 2015/16

On 2nd April 2015 all 11 stock (Council housing) retaining authorities in Wales signed a voluntary agreement with the UK
and Welsh Governments to change the financing arrangements for council housing in Wales.

The negative subsidy system in operation, which required Flintshire to make annual payments of circa £6m in negative
subsidy to Welsh Government and on to UK Treasury, ended. This was replaced with interest payments on Public
Works Loan Board (PWLB) loans that the Council borrowed to exit the subsidy system as part of the agreement. The
PWLB loans, called the settlement payment (a one-off lump sum payment classed as capital expenditure), was paid to
Welsh Government (WG) and on to UK Treasury. For Flintshire this amounted to £79,248k, the payment is shown
separately of the face of the Housing Revenue Account and the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as
a material item of expenditure.

The agreement will generate revenue savings allowing the Council to increase its investment in existing stock, and
support the delivery of additional supply of housing. It will also provide more local accountability to tenants.

HRA Valuations - Dwellings — 2015/16

During 2015/16 the Council's Housing Stock was revalued. The carrying net book value of the Council Dwellings
decreased by £34,914k which was debited to the HRA line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account
representing a downwards movement in the valuation of the Council’s housing stock since the last revaluation on 1st
April 2011. Shown on the face of the Housing Revenue Account and the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as a material item of expenditure

6. HRA SHARE OF CONTRIBUTIONS TO / FROM PENSIONS RESERVE

The cost of retirement benefits is recognised in the net cost of services when they are earned by employees, rather than
when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge required to the HRA is based on the
employers’ contributions made in year, so the real cost of retirement benefits is reversed out in the movement in
reserves statement.

The HRA transactions in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement and the movement in reserves
statement during the year are:-

2017 2016
£000 £000 £000 £000
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Service Expenditure Analysis -
Current service cost 982 1,004
Curtailments/settiements 37 6
Other Operating Expenditure - 1,019 1,010
Administration expenses 53 22
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 53 22
Net interest expense 551 522
551 522
Total HRA Charge 1,623 1,554
Movement in Reserves Statement
Reversal of net charges made to surplus / deficit on the provision of (1,623) (1,554)
services for retirement benefits in accordance with IAS 19
Actual amount charged against the HRA
balance for pensions in the year:
Employers' contributions payable to scheme 1,230 1,084
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2016/17 financial year and its position at the
year end of 31 March 2017. The Council is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and
Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014 which require the accounts to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting
practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2016/17 (the Code) supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The accounting convention
adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of
non-current assets and financial instruments.

Accruals of Income and Expenditure

The revenue and capital accounts of the Council are prepared on an accruals basis. Sums are included in the final
accounts to cover income or expenditure attributable to the year of account for goods received or work done, but for
which payment has not been received/made by 31st March 2017. Where income and expenditure have been
recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the
Balance Sheet. In particular:-

Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed — where there is a gap between the date supplies are
received and their consumption they are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet.

An exception to this policy relates to annual payments which are charged when paid rather than being apportioned
across financial years. The policy is applied consistently each year and therefore have no material effect on a single
year's accounts.

Borrowing Costs

The Council has elected to adopt the adaptation by the Code in respect of IAS 23 which allows borrowing costs in
respect of qualifying assets to be expensed rather than capitalised. Therefore, all borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense as they are incurred.

Capital Receipts

Capital receipts arise from the disposal of property assets and the repayment of advances, and are accounted for on an
accruals basis; amounts not exceeding £10k from any disposal are treated as revenue income, in accordance with
capital regulations. The balance of receipts which has not been used for capital financing purposes is included in the
Balance Sheet as usable capital receipts.

Carbon Reduction Commitment Scheme

The Council is required to participate in the Carbon Reduction Commitment (CRC) Energy Efficiency Scheme. The
scheme is currently in the third year of the second phase running from 1st April 2014 to 31st March 2019.

The Council is required to purchase and surrender allowances, currently retrospectively, on the basis of emissions i.e.
carbon dioxide produced as energy is used. As carbon dioxide is emitted (i.e. as energy is used), a liability on the
Balance Sheet and an expense within the cost of services line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement are recognised. The liability will be discharged by surrendering allowances. The liability is measured at the
best estimate of the expenditure required to meet the obligation, normally at the current market price of the number of
allowances required to meet the liability at the reporting date.
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty ol
more than 24 hou@ash equivalerte highly liquid investments that mature in three months or less from the
acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in v:

In the Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement, catheapivedents are shown net of bank overdrafts that
UHSD\DEOH RQ GHPDQG DQG IRUP DQ LQWHJUDO SDUW RI WKH &

Charges to Revenue for Non Current Assets
Service Portfoliase charged with the following amounts to recorotheldosy fixed assets during the year:

x Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service.

x Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no accumulated
Revaluation Reserve against thieidbsses can be written off.

x Amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service.

x The Council is not required to raise Council Tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairme
amortisation. However, it is required t@amakeual contribution from revenue towards the reduction |
overall borrowing requirement equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by th
accordance with statutory guidance. Depreciation, revaluation and impaiamenaniostisation are,
therefore, replaced by the contribution in the Council Funf/iBatanoe Revenue Provision (MiyRyay
of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves State
differencbetween the two.

7KH &R XQFL O fateddr &cbrdarkch with ¥i6/20MRP Policy Statement agre€bbgcil ikrebruary
2016, subsequently amend&diie 2016 and February 2@fih accordance Withish Government Guidance on
MRP. The Cauil's Policy is ¢harge minimum revenue provision of

x 2% of debt outstanding for the housing revenue account

x 2% of council fund debt outstanding fixetar8h 2016n capital expenditure incurred b&fapill2008
andcapital expenditduacd bysupportedorrowingetweensiApril 2008 ands8#larch 2016

x Capital expenditure incurred on orsafpril1l2008 funded by prudential borrandadj future debt funded
capital expendituvél be repaid based orettpected useful bfeghe asset using equal annual instalments.

In addition, the Council may pay off or replace loans earlier than originally planned as part of its debt
strategy, dependent upon prevailing market conditions, risk and fin@dnbialaelogiif. MRP charged for the
year is disclosed in NeSte

Employee Benefits

Benefits Payable during Employment

Shorterm employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 montlesdf Theyaaclude such benefits
as wages and salaries, pandial leave and paid sick leave for current employees and are recognised as an
for services in the year in which employees render service to the Council. An accrual is made for the c

entitlements (or any form of leave, e.qg. flexngnao#f in lieu) earned by employees but not taken befere the
end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year.
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Seeviaesefset out through the Movemen
in Reserves Statement) so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in whic
absence occurs.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a resulidR&®Qdeeis WKH &R XQFLO WR WHUPI
EHIRUH WKH QRUPDO UHWLUHPHQW GDWH RU DQ RIILFHUYV GF
accruals basis when the Cawartino longer withdraw the offer of those bemnbéts e authority recognises
costs for a restructure

When termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the Council
to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension hendrothgeysar, not the amount

calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, app
required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension e
termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners
amounts payable but unpaid at thengkar

Post Employment Benefits
Employees of the Council are members of two separate pension schemes

x (KH 7HDFKHUVY 3HQVLRQ 6FKHPH DGPLQLVWHUHG E\ &DSLW
Education (DfE).

x The Local Government PesibameClwyd Pension Fyadministered by Flintshire County Louncil

The schemes provide defieeefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions) earned as employees
the Council.

+RZHYHU WKH DUUDQJHPHQWYV IRU WKH WHDFKHUVY VFKHPH
identified specifically taGbencil. Trecheme is, therefore, accounted for as if it were a defined contribution ¢
and no liability for future payments of benefits is recognised in the Balance Sheet. T &tiiRatidoliand
Service line in the Comprehensive Income and ExgendW DWHPHQW LV FKDUJHG ZLW
SD\DEOH WR 7THDFKHUVYT 3HQVLRQV LQ WKH \HDU

The Local Government Pension Scheme

The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benrefits scheme:

x The liabilities of the pension fuitditaitie to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuari
using the projected gredit actuarial cos¢thod+an assessment of the future payments that will be mad
relation to retirement benefits earned to date by engdegems assumptions about mortality rates, employ

turnover rates, etc, and projections of earnings for current employees.

x Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a Ossednrdte market yields at the
reporting date high quality corporate bonds.

x The assets of Clwyd pension fund attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

. The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components:

« Current service cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year —
allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for which the
employees worked.

. Past service cost — the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose effect relates to
years of service earned in earlier years — debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Corporate and Central Finance
Service Portfolio.

. Gains or losses on settlements and curtailments — the result of actions to relieve the Council of
liabilities or events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of benefits of employees —
debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement as part of Corporate and Central Finance Service Portfolio.

« Net Interest on the net defined benefit liability — the net interest expense for the Council, the change
during the period that arises from the passage of time — debited to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Calculated as
interest on pension liabilities less the interest on assets. The value of liabilities is calculated by
discounting the expected future benefit payments for the period between the expected payment date
and the date at which they are being valued. Interest on assets is the interest on assets held at the
start of the period and cashflows occurring during the period, calculated using the discount rate at the
start of the year.

« Administration expenses - the costs of running the fund attributable to the Council, does not include
investment management expenses — debited to Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

« Return on plan assets — excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability —
charged to the Pensions Reserve.

« Actuarial gains and losses — changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have not
coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have updated
their assumptions — charged to the Pensions Reserve.

« Contributions paid to the Clwyd pension fund — cash paid as employer’s contributions to the pension
fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the Council Fund / HRA balance to be charged with the
amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated
according to the relevant accounting standards.

In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to
remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the
pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that
arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the Council Fund / HRA of being required to
account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees.

Discretionary Benefits
The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early
retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff (including teachers) are

accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the
Local Government Pension Scheme.

75



STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Events After the Reporting Period

Events after the Balance Sheet ddimseecvents, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the
the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of
identified:

x Those that provide evidence of conditioesidtet at the end of the reporting pghedStatement of
Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events.

x Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the repotiing Statechent of Accounts is not
adjusted to reflect such everttsylimre a category of events would have a material effect, disclosure is r
the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.

Fair Value Measurement

The Council measures some of Hmapaial assets such as surplussamse investment propedies some
financial instrumeatdair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to se
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly trabstetien market participants ateéhsurement date. Assuming
that

x Transactiatakeplace in the principal market, or the most advantageous market
x Prices are set by market participants acting in their best economic interest
x Nonfinancial assets will be used in their highest asallibebbth buyer and seller

The Council uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which suffi
available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable input

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which the fair value is measured ¢
WKH &RXQFLOYV ILQDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWY DUH FDWHJRUL]JHG Z

x Level 1 inputsquoted prices (ulpasted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Cour
access at the measurement date

x Level 2 inputsinputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
either directly adirectly

x Level 3 inputaunobservable inputs for the asset or liability

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liak
instrument of another entity-ekldrange transactions, such as those relating to taxes and government grant
give rise to financial instruments.

Financial Liabilities
A financial liability is an obligation to transfer economic benefits controlled by the Counabkantkéddy lze rey

contractual obligation to deliver cash or financial assets with another entity that is potentially unfavo
Council.
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
for interest payable, are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the
instrument. This means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus
accrued interest) and interest charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable
for the year in the loan agreement.

Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited and debited to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year of
repurchase/settlement. However, where repurchase has taken place as part of restructuring of the loan portfolio that
involves the modification or exchange of existing instruments, the premium or discount is respectively deducted or
added to the amortised cost of the new or modified loan and the write down to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement is spread over the life of the loan by an adjustment to the effective interest rate.

When premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
regulations allow the impact on the Council Fund Balance to be spread over future years. The Council has a policy of
spreading the gain or loss over the term that was remaining on the loan against which the premium was payable or the
discount receivable when it was repaid. The reconciliation of amounts charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement to the net charge required against the Council Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from
the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Financial Assets

A financial asset is a right to future economic benefits controlled by the Council that is represented by cash or other
instruments or a contractual obligation to receive cash or another financial asset.

Financial assets are classified into two types:-

« Loans and receivables — assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not quoted in an active market.

. Available-for-sale assets — assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not have fixed or determinable
payments.

Loans and Receivables:

Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of a financial instrument, and are initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their
amortised cost.

Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, for interest receivable, are based on the carrying amount of the asset, multiplied by the effective
rate of interest of the financial instrument. This means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the
outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest), and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the year, as determined in the loan agreement.

Available-for-Sale Assets:

Available-for-sale assets are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes party to the contractual
provisions of a financial instrument, and are initially measured and carried at fair value.
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNPRIGCIES

Where the asset has fixed or determinable payments, annual credits to the Financing and Investmen
Expenditure line in @@emprehensive Income and Expenditure Statemtarest receivable, are based on the
amortised cost of essultiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument.

Where there are no fixed or determinable payments, income (e.g. dividends) i€oragiteldetesste Income
and Expenditure Statemdren it becomes receivable by the Council.

Assets are maintained in the Balance Sheet at fair value. Values are based on the following principles:

x Instruments with quoted market ptieesnarket price
x  Other instruments with fixed and determinable palistenisted caflbw analysis.
x  Equity shares with no quoted market gindependent appraisal of company valuations.

Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in thdohBalalteserve and the gain / loss is recognised in 1
Surplus or Deficit on Revaluation of Ad@idhle Financial Assets.

The exception is where impairment losses have beenthesarade debited to the Financing and Investme
Income and Expenditure line @dmprehensive Income and Expenditure Stalemgmiith any net gains/ los
for the asset accumulated in the Aviaifslalke Reserve.

Where assets are identified as impaired, because of a likelihood arising from a past event that payments
contract will not be made (fixed or determinable payments) fadlfabelalueost, the asset is written down and
charge made to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditur€olngreneti@ve Income and
Expenditure Statemetitthe asset has fixed or determinable payments, the impairment los$ & rieasu
difference between the carrying amount and the preseht VlkkeH UHYLVHG IXWXUH FDVK |
original effective interest rate. Otherwise the impairment loss is measured as any shortfall of fair valu
acqusition cost of the instrument (net of any principal repayment and amortisation).

Any gains or losses that arise on derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to the Financing ar
Income and Expenditure line in the ComprehensiventhExmenditure Statement, along with any accumula
gains or losses previously recognised in the for8kbl&®Reserve. Where fair value cannot be measured reli
the instrument is carried at cost less any impairment losses.

Government Grants @uContributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party contributions .
are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable assurance that:

x  The Council will comply with thegiosnattached to the paymemd;

x The grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expendit
until conditions attached to the grant or contribution batisfieeeConditions are stipulations that specify that
future economic benefits or service potential realised using the grant or contribution are required to be co
recipient as specifogdhust be returned to the transferor.

Monies a@wiced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in
Sheet as creditors (Grants Receipts in Advance).

When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevéattrimiiabée lireenue

grants and contributions) or Taxation aBgeddit Grant Income fimyfenced revenue grants and all capita
grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Where capital grants aredited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are rever
the Council Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be us
capital expenditure, it is posted to the CapsdUGapptied reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted t
Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Cap
Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.

Haitage Assets

Heritage assets are those assets that the Council intends to preserve in trust for future generations be
FXOWXUDO HQYLURQPHQWDO RU KLVWRULFDO DVVRFLDWLERQV
(record office) collectiamsl museum collections.

Historical Buildings

7TKH &RXQFLOYV KLVWRULFDO EXLOGLQJY DUH ORFDWHG SULPD
classified as operational ooperational.

Operatioal
If in addition to being held for their heritage characteristics, they are used for other activities or togstovide
they are valued in the same way as other buildings of that general asset type, and accounted for as opera

Non-Operational

If held for their heritage characteristics only; they are valued in accordance with FRS 30 (Herita
Consideration has been given to the categorisation and valuation of these assets on the basis of their ex
potential l@ernative use. The majority of these do not command a market value and given their nature
cannot be made on replacement cost basis; as such, historical cost measurement is considered appr
records are held. In accounting formagsess, it is recognised that the acquisition of the majority-détbeine pre
existence of the current administrative authority (i.e. pre 1996 Local Gavgemsatiorle and thereby
prevents the collection of accurate/total historicaheasomfor accounting purposes.

Collections:

County Archives
The archives, ranging from a single piece of paper to thousands of documents, are held under a variety
most common ones being depositgtonipan), gift or purchase.

The majority of archives are held on deposit. No attempt has been made to assign a cash or insurance
irreplaceable historical and cultural heritage, although in cases where the archives have been purchas
their saleroom value atithe may exist. Obtaining a valuation of all the owned assets would be a lengthy,
intensive and costly exercise, and any market value placed on these assets would not be a true reflection
WKH DVVHWY WR WKHs&R K QW chMd Kdt bel rdpladed orWwekddsimdgeduently, the
Council does not recognise these assets on the Balance Sheet.

A small number of items are artefacts rather than documentary material which forms the large majority o

and as such are exceptions. The Council considers it appropriate to insure the artefacts even though it
them; their historical insurance value is £174,415 and is not considered material for reporting/disclosure p
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STATEMENTFGACCOUNTING POLICIES

County Museum

The County's museum collection consists of about 6,800 items or groups of items. Of these approxim
displayed at MdWtluseum2)0 atBuckley Museum and a group of about 580 items are on loan toatBgenfiel
Trust. The remainder is held in-amea$tore. Theajority of the collection items have been donated. The ©
majority of the collection cannot be valued because of its diverse and unique nature. Conventional valuati
lack sufficieneliability and the cost of obtaining the valuations for these items would be disproportionate in
benefit derived. As with the County Archives collection, the Council does not recognise these assets o
Sheet.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are-mametary assets without physical substance. Expenditure on intangible assets is c
only where it is expected that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, tr
where the caost the asset can be measured reliably.

Development expenditure, or purchased software licences may meet thrtaligjibigsseit when access to
the future economic benefits that they represent is controlled by the Council, eitlisr dhrieggh proséction;
a de nmimis expendituesel of £akbelowwvhich the requirements of capital accounting will not be applied is in

Intangible assets are carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible amssstits amol
useful life to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and ExpendiineoSisdtorent.
commences the first full year following acquisition / addition.

The most common useful lives used in respect of amortisation are:

Years
Software licences 5
Development expenditure 7

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, amortisati
not permitted to have an impact on the Council Fund Balamdberridra reversed out of the Council Fun
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Interest Charges

External interest payable is charged @orifrehensive Income and Expenditure Statementwitiyetiee
amortisation of gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing carried forward ir
Sheet.

Inventory

Inventories arecluded in the Balance Saeé#te lower of cost or net realisable value. The costp# efch ty
LQYHQWRU\ LV PHDVXUHG LQ D GLIITHUHQW zZD\ WKH PHDVXUHPI

Halkyn Depdtghways maintenance and rock salt) Weighted average

X

x  Alltami Depa@réunds & vehicle maintenance and rock salt)Weidpted average

x  Alltami Depdieet fuel) FIFO (first in first out)
x Canton Depdiuflding maintenance) FIFO

All other stock is measured at cost
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments
Investments are shown in the balance sheeta {aravket value) for each class of financial instrument.

Short term deposits and investments are included in the cash and cash equivalents rather than short termr
they mature within 3 months atthusition date, under IAS 7.

InvestmenhProperty

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. The ¢
met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or production of goods or is held

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently kairfgirthalpace that would be
receivedo sell such an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
nonfinancial asselvestment properties are measured at highest and best use.

Properties are not depreciated but are revaluedeftentaliyparket conditions at the-grdr Gains and losses
on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment IncendtarelliBepn the Comprehensive Incom
and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.

However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have
the Concil Fund Balance. The gains and losses are, therefore, reversed out of the Council Fund Bal
Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustifaent #dcaunsale proceeds greater
than £1Qkhe Capital Receipts Regerve

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment Income
in a gain for the Council Batance.

Joint Committes

The Council recognises on the Balance Sheet the assets thand toatialslities that it inftons the activity
of anyservicedeliveredn conjunction with other parties, and reflects within the Comprehensive Inco
Expenditure Statement the expenditure it incurs, and the share of income it earns from such.

Leases
Finance Leases

For a lease to be classified as a finance lease substantially all risks and rewards of ownership need to be
Council. There are five examples of situations that individually or in combination would n@sealigitepd to
classified as a finance lease. These are:

x The lease transfers ownership of the asset to the lessee by the end of.the lease term

x The lessee has the option to purchase the asset at a price that is expected to be sufficiently lower
value so as to make it reasonably certain the option will be exercised

x The lease term is for the major part of the economic life of the asset

x The present value of the minimum lease payments amounts to at least substantially all of the fair
OHDVHG DVVHW WKH &RXQFLO KDYH GHWHUPL Q HriglepevideatY W
lease consultantshd

x The leased assets are of such a specialised nature that only the lessee can use them witl
modifications.
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STATEMKT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are bourne by the Council,
recorded as property, plant and equipment and a corresponding liability is recognised.

The value at which bothracognised is the lower of the fair value of the asset or the present value of the
lease payments, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. The implicit interest rate is that w
a constant periodic rate of interdst ontstanding liability.

The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the life of the as
depreciation accounting policg. asset and liability are recognised at the inception of the leasks and
recognised when the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.

The annual rental is split between the repayment of the liability and a finance cost. The annual finance co
by applying the implicit interest rate to the outsthititing

Operating Leases

Leases that do not meet the definition of finance leases are accounted for as operating leases. Operatin
are charged to revenue accounts, on an accruals basis, dme basiglover the term of the lease

Property leases are classified and accounted for as separate leases of land and buildings.
Overheads and Support Services

The costs of centrally prowidgabrate arslipport servicexludingdministrative buildings have been charged 1
servicePatfolios as shown on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditinrdirtatetimehe
& R X Qritdrr@lfréportiagangements for financial performance and accountability.

Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies amdtEstand Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material ¢
in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years ajéeatsd by tl
do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the chi
more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, othdt RV@@@LaNd RQV RQ
financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (L
otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if theagsw pol
been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening |
comparative amounts for the prior period.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Assets that have physical substance and @oeussdn the production or supply of goods or services, for rer

others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one finan
classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment that is deemed to enhance
the value of an asset is initially capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic
benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. Such assets are subsequently revalued in-year and impaired or revalued as appropriate to ensure they are
held at the correct carrying value.

Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits or service
potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred. A de minimis expenditure level of
£20k below which the requirements of capital accounting will not be applied is in place.

Measurement
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:-

. The purchase price

. Any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management.

« The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located.

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:-
«  Council dwellings — current value, determined using the existing use value for social housing (EUV — SH).
. Infrastructure assets — depreciated historical cost.
« Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment — depreciated historical cost.

« All other operational assets — current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its
existing use (existing use value — EUV).

«  Community assets — historical cost and not depreciated.

« Surplus assets — current value measurement is based on fair value, estimated at highest and best use from a
market participant’s perspective

« Assets under construction — historical cost.

Where there is no market-based evidence of current value because of the specialist nature of an asset, depreciated
replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of current value.

Where non-property assets have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated historical cost basis is used as a
proxy for current value.

Revaluation

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that their carrying
amount is not materially different from their current value at the year-end, but as a minimum every five years. The
Council meets this requirement by revaluing a proportion of the total asset portfolio as at 1 April each year; in 2016/17
approximately 13% of operational non-dwelling assets were revalued. Valuations are undertaken in accordance with
the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Valuation — Professional Standards Global and UK Edition (January
2014). Valuations are carried out by the Council’'s in-house RICS valuers wherever possible, but in some cases
external valuers are used.
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The valuation methodolepd for the HRA Housing Stock is the Beacon Approach, an adjusted vacant pc
value technique based on the value of the property assuming vacant possession, with an adjustment fe
continuedccupation by a secured tenant. This nogirotthe most widely adopted amongst local authorities
Wales is the methodology that is most likely to produce consistent valuations of similar HRA prdpeaties in
authorities. Tloairrenvalue of council dwellings is measuredxising ese vals®cial housing (E¥pWH)as
defined by RIG&luation Standards, being the estimated amount for which a property should exchange (or
valuation) between a willing buyer and a willing seller,-larggthatratssaction

Indeases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains.
gains might be credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they arise from
a loss previously clegr¢o a service.

Where decreases in value are identified, they are acasufukalfer

x Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carryir
the asset is written down against that bgdaonadiéuamount of the accumulated gains).

x Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying ar
asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Sttement.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date
implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Accou

Impairment

Assets are rewed for impairment at the end of each reportirig pesock that they are not carried at a valu
higher than their recoverable anftxamples of impairment include a significant reduction in a specific asse
and evidence of physical damagdife damage).

Assets are assessed at eacheyelbas to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.
indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount o
estimaté and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recogn
shortfall. Where impairment losses are identified, they are aasdolitedsfor

x Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for thb@statuation Reserve, the carrying amount
the asset is written down against that balance (up to theaayagaohaflated gains).

x Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying ar
assetd written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and E
Statement.

Where an impairment loss is subseqegntigedthe reversal is credited to the relevant service line(s) in
Comprehensive Income and Expengiatement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for deprecia
would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipmigmtaafisiesuseite | An exception is made
for assets without a determinable finite useful life and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. .

constructionDepreaition on new assets is chargedHedmst full year followadylitionn the casef @all assets
other than those acquired under finance leases, for which provision is made from the year of addition
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis, assuming nil residual values fot algsapepiy @hnwith
the most common useful lives being:

Years
Buildings 50
Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment10 3
Infrastructure assets 40

Council Dwellings are depreciated by a sum equivalent to the visjonRapai{MRA).

Assets capitalised under finance leases are depreciated over the life assigned to the asset by either tl
SODFH RU LQ WKH DEVHQFH RI WKLV LQIRUPDWLRQ EHLQM®» DYD
their review of the lease.

Assets under Construction are not depreciated until the asset is brought into use.
Componentisation

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is significant in
total cost of the item and whose estimated useful life is significantly different from the useful life of the m
components are depreciated separately.

A de minimis materiality level of £2.5m for the asset value has been set, bédoalwhitls midproperty, plant
and equipment will not be considered for componentisation; significant components will be deemed as
current value is 20% or more of the total current value of the asset.

Revaluation gains are also deprecidtednvamount equal to the difference between current value depre
charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their historica
transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capit@ickdustment

Derecognition of Property, Plant and Equipment

An item of property, plant or equipment is derecognised by disposal or when no future economic bent
potential is expected from its use.

Disposalsand NorCurrent Assets Held for 8al

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a s:
rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset ¢tald il &allee following criteria are
met:

x Theasset must be available for immediate sale in its presensutgeditionterms that are usual and
customary for sales of such assets.

x The sale must be highly probable; the appropriate level of management must be committed to a pl
assefand an active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan must have been initiated.

x The asset (or disposal group) must be actively marketed for a sale at a price that is reasonable in
current fair value.

The sale should be expecepialify for recognition as a completed sale withirobiigeyeate of classification
and action required to complete the plan should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to th
made or that the plan will be withdrawn.
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and
costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to gefiietiedabe i©ther
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fe
recognised only up to the amount of any previously recognised losses in the Surplus or Deficit on Provisi
Depreiation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassifieshtback
assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they werdhelddsifiesdlas(adjusted for
depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been classifie
sale) and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell.

Assets that are to be abandorsetlagped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sl
Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to theng@thereOgiuae line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts fron
credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as msrtoof the ¢
disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any reval
accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Amounts received for a disposatcess of £10k are categorised as Capital Receipts. The balance of rec
required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital inve
DVLGH WR UHGXFH WKH &R X {hE capifaVfinaqriddrehoindm@nl). Redeipts AR afipPRopti
to the Reserve from the Council Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The writteaff value of disposals is not a charge against council tax or rents, as tioercestastatmis fully
provided for under separate capital financing arrangements. Amounts are appropriated to the Capit
Accounts from the Council Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Coetimid\ssets
Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or constructive c
probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and a reliable est
made of the amount of obligation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income an
Statement in the year that the Council becomes aware of the obligation, and are measuredeatittibebest e
Balance Sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account releva
uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance She
settlementare reviewed at the end of each financialWpeae it becomes less than probable that a transfer
economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement thais ardu#)atbd provision is reversed anc
credited back to the relevamwice.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered feogn anott

from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant service if it is virtually
reimbursementll be received if the Council settles the obligation.
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible obligation wl
will only be ciinmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the col
Council.

Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it
that an outflow ekources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.
liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts.

Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an eviakemaglace that gives the Council a possible asset whose existen
only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control
Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balanaé @belesed in a note to the accounts where it is probe
that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential.

Schools

$00 RI WKH &RXQFLOYVY PDLQWDLQHG VFKRROV DUH FRQVLGH
requiements of the code the Council accounts for its maintained schosilsgieitbinyiifsiancial statements.
This includes school income, expenditure, assets, liabilities, reserves and cash flows.

Noncurrent Assets Schools

Noncurrent aets of Community schools are owned by the Council and are included in the Balance Sheet.
Voluntary Aided and Voluntary Controlled school buildings are ownedobgie®lignousherefore are not
recognised on the Balance Sheet. Any land aimdjdightsythat are owned by the Council at Voluntary Aid
Controlled schoassiincluded on the Balance She@eKH &R XQFLOfV VLQJOH )RXQGDW
governors of the school and is therefore included in the Balance Sheet.

Subsidia/s

The Counacivholly ovena compargalled North East Walemkland Property Management (NEW Hames)
therefore controls @migityrequiring the preparatiagmafp accounts

In he CouncflV V L Q Acxblnteinteydsts in subsididsiescordedlt cost.

Reserves

Amounts set aside for purposes falling outside the definition of provisions are considered as reserves. T
either a planned-astde of cash to resource unforeseen expenditure demands in the sharésetonasssbur
cash flow management or accumulated resources which have not been spent or earmarked at the end of
period. Transfers to and Reserveare shown as appropriations Mothemenih ReserveStatement.

Revenue Expenditurerded from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS)

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that does nc

creation of a non current asset has been charged as expenditure to the relevai@@apniebansiiie Income
and Expenditure Statement in the year.
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Where the Courwls determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by
a transfer in the Movement in Resetatment from the Council Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment /
then reverses out the amounts charged so that there is nho impastobootineciesedr rent

Examples of REFCUS expenditure are Disabled Facilities grants, gregsesoabd private property
enhancement schemes.

Value Added Tax

9$7 SD\DEOH LV LQFOXGHG DV DQ H[SHQVH RQO\ WR WKH H[WH
Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.
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GROUP ACCOUNTS

The Code requires that a local authority with material interests in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures should
prepare Group Accounts in addition to its single entity accounts.

For Group Accounts purposes the Council has consolidated the accounts of North East Wales Homes Limited (NEW
Homes), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Council.

The Council’'s other collaborative working arrangements have been reviewed against the requirements of the Code, and
it has been determined that none of these arrangements require inclusion in Group Accounts.

The Group Accounts include:
e Group Movement in Reserves Statement
e Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
e Group Balance Sheet
e Group Cash Flow Statement

NEW Homes

NEW Homes was established on 31 April 2014 to own, lease and manage properties with the aim of increasing the
quantity and quality of affordable housing across the county, whilst providing a professional service to landlords and
tenants.

NEW Homes is a company limited by shares, wholly owned by the Council (1 at £1 par value), established under
section 95 of the Local Government Act 2003. The Council has a high level of control over NEW Homes as the single
shareholder approving:

. theissue of share capital

. the distribution of trading surplus

« annual business plan

« any asset disposals

« any borrowing against assets

« appointment of directors to the board

Further information on NEW Homes is available on its website www.northeastwaleshomes.co.uk,.

NEW Homes balance sheet shows that it owns non-current assets, these currently equate to 31 properties in total
donated by private developers for £1 each under section 106 agreements to provide affordable housing. These
agreements between developers and local planning authorities are negotiated as part of a condition of planning consent
and enable local authorities to negotiate contributions towards a range of infrastructure and services, including
affordable housing. The total value of these properties in the NEW Homes Balance Sheet is £4.6m.

The Council and NEW Homes enter into a nomination rights agreement in respect of each property, which entitles the
Council to select every tenant, and uses this to house people from the Flintshire affordable housing register.

In addition, as set out in the Narrative Report, NEW Homes are in the process of developing a further 62 new affordable
homes for rent at The Walks site in Flint. £3.8m of expenditure had been incurred by 31 March, which is included within
Assets under Construction in the NEW Homes Balance Sheet.

Accounting Policies

The accounting policies for the Group follow those adopted by Flintshire County Council in the single entity statements,

as detailed on pages 72 to 88. Where NEW Homes accounting policies are different, adjustments have been made on
consolidation to align any differences in accounting treatment.
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GROUP MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT
for the year endedt®larch 2017

GROUP MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT
for the year endedt®larch 2016
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GROUREOMPREHENSINNECEOME AND EXPENDITSRETEMENT
for the year ended®3arch 2017
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GROUP BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2017

2017 2016
Note £000 £000 £000 £000
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant & Equipment
Council dwellings 210,912 216,186
Other land and buildings 276,057 263,041
Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment 15,918 14,962
Surplus assets 9,009 8,693
Infrastructure assets 151,232 153,549
Community assets 4,721 4,711
Assets under construction 7,633 21,089
Total Property, Plant & Equipment 1 675,482 682,231
Investment properties and Agricultural Estate 28,508 30,611
Intangible assets 110 227
Long term investments 0 0
Long term debtors 2,211 2,102
NON-CURRENT ASSETS TOTAL 706,311 715,171
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 1,075 1,069
Short term debtors (net of impairment provision)* 36,642 31,841
Short term investments 0 6,014
Cash and cash equivalents 7173 25197
Assets held for sale 4,243 3,556
Current tax asset 5 0
CURRENT ASSETS TOTAL 49,138 67,677
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowing repayable on demand or within 12 months (14,377) (2,785)
Short term creditors* (32,836) (30,825)
Provision for accumulated absences (2,651) (1,891)
Deferred liabilities (565) (580)
Grants receipts in advance (1,528) (858)
Provisions (418) (2,492)
Current Tax Liability 0 (5)
CURRENT LIABILITIES TOTAL (52,375) (39,436)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term creditors (240) (2,266)
Long term borrowing (250,998) (251,901)
Deferred liabilities (5,386) (5,951)
Provisions (994) (1,042)
Other long term liabilities (395,050) (308,679)
Grants receipts in advance (2,382) (2,270)
Deferred Tax Liability (921) (624)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES TOTAL (655,971) (572,733)
NET ASSETS 47,103 170,679

*In producing the 2016-17 accounts it was noted that the 2015-16 NDR creditor balance of £2,580k had been incorrectly included in the debtor balance.
Opening creditor and debtor balances have subsequently been amended.
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USABLE RESERVES

Capital receipts reserve
Capital grants unapplied
Council fund

Earmarked reserves

Housing revenue account
Profit and Loss Reserve
USABLE RESERVES TOTAL

UNUSABLE RESERVES

Revaluation reserve

Capital adjustment account

Financial instruments adjustment account
Pensions reserve

Deferred capital receipts

Accumulated absences account
UNUSABLE RESERVES TOTAL

TOTAL RESERVES

GROUP BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2017

2017
Note £000

10,671
4,012
10,774
20,525
1,642
178

63,283
340,435
(6,814)
(395,050)
98

(2,651)

47,103

93

£000

47,802

(699)

2016
£000

7,969
3,336
10,067
27,745
1,517
112

57,470
380,112
(7,177)
(308,679)
98

(1,891)

£000

50,746

119,933

170,679



GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year endedt8larch 201

NOTES TO THE GROUP ACCOUNTS

1. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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CLWYD PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS
for the year ended 31st March 2017

THE MANAGEMENT AND MEMBERSHIP OF THE CLWYD PENSION FUND

The Clwyd Pension Fund is administered by Flintshire County Council on a lead authority basis. The administration and
investment strategy of the Fund is set annually by the Clwyd Pension Fund Committee, consisting of eight elected
Members and one employee representative, each with equal voting rights, access to training and to information. The
Fund's core investment management arrangements were implemented by eight investment managers during 2016/17.

The Clwyd Pension Fund is a statutory Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), set up to provide death and
retirement benefits for local government employees, other than teachers, police and firefighters in North East Wales. In
addition, other qualifying bodies that provide similar services to that of local authorities have been admitted to
membership of the LGPS and hence the Fund.

The Clwyd Pension Fund operates a defined benefit scheme whereby retirement benefits are funded by contributions
and investment earnings. Contributions are made by active members in accordance with the LGPS Regulations 2013,
as amended, and range from 5.5% to 12.5% of pensionable pay for the financial year ending 31st March 2017.
Employee contributions are added to employer contributions which are set based on triennial actuarial funding
valuations. The benefits of the scheme are also prescribed nationally by the 2013 Regulations (as amended). The last
valuation was at 31st March 2016, the findings of which became effective on 1st April 2017. The valuation showed that
the funding level increased from the previous valuation (31st March 2013) from 68% to 76%. The employers’ contribution
rates are structured to achieve a gradual return to 100% funding level over a 15 year period from April 2017. This
implies an average employer contribution rate of 15.3% and a total initial recovery payment of approximately £51.5m
(which also includes allowance for some employers to phase in any increases and allowance for some employers to
prepay three years contributions in April 2017). The LGPS (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016
requires administering authorities to produce and maintain an Investment Strategy Statement which documents how the
investment strategy for the fund is determined and implemented. The 2016 Regulations replaced the LGPS
(Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 (as amended) and came into force on 1st November 2016.

Membership of the LGPS is voluntary and organisations participating in the Clwyd Pension Fund include:

« Scheduled bodies, that are local authorities and similar bodies whose staff are automatically entitled to be
members of the fund.

« Admitted bodies that are organisations which participate in the fund under an admission agreement between
the fund and the relevant organisation. Admitted bodies include voluntary, charitable and similar contractors
undertaking a local authority function following outsourcing to the private sector.

The membership of the Fund as at 31st March 2017 and 2016 is shown below:

2017 2016
No. No.
Active Members 15,748 15,989
Pensioners & Survivors
Ex employees 10,314 9,862
Survivors 1,671 1,616
Other
Preserved benefits/
Undecided 14,502 13,176
Frozen Refund 1,177 1,022
43412 41,665
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The scheduled bodies which contributed to the Fund during 2016/17 are:

Unitary Authorities: Flintshire, Denbighshire, Wrexham.

Educational Organisations: Coleg Cambria, Glyndwr University.

Town and Community Argoed, Coedpoeth, Connah's Quay, Hawarden, Rhosllanerchrugog, Buckley,

Councils: Prestatyn, Offa, Mold, Caia Park, Rhyl, Shotton, Llanasa, Gwernymynydd, Marchwiel,
Bagillt, Penyffordd, Acton, Hope, Denbigh, Cefn Mawr.

Other: North Wales Fire Service, North Wales Valuation Tribunal,

The admitted bodies contributing to the Fund are:-

Other: Careers Wales, Cartref y Dyffryn Ceiriog, Chartwells, Bodelwyddan Castle Trust, Civica UK, Denbigh Youth
Group, Wrexham Commercial Services, Freedom Leisure, Glyndwr Students’ Union, Embrace, Cymrhyd Rhan,
Grosvenor Ltd.

Further information is available in the Clwyd Pension Fund Annual Report and Investment Strategy Statement which are
presented to the Annual Joint Consultative Meeting for employers and member representatives that is held annually.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Fund’s transactions for the 2016/17 financial year and its position at year
end as at 31st March 2017. The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17 which is based upon International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS), as amended for the UK public sector.

The accounts summarise the transactions of the Fund and report on the net assets available to pay pension benefits.
The accounts do not take account of obligations to pay pensions and benefits which fall due after the end of the financial
year. The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits, valued on an International Accounting Standard (IAS)
19 basis, is disclosed at Note 16 of these accounts.

In summary, accounting policies adopted are detailed as follows:

« Contributions, benefits and investment income due are included on an accruals basis.

« Investments are included in the accounts at market value, usually bid price.

« Debtors and creditors are raised for all amounts outstanding at 31t March.

« Individual Transfer values received and paid out have been accounted for on a cash basis.
« Bulk Transfer values paid out are accounted for on an accruals basis.

. The financial statements do not take account of liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits after the reported
accounting period.

- Investment management expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis and include the fees paid and due to the
fund managers and custodian, actuarial, performance measurement and investment consultant fees.

« Administration expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis. All Flintshire County Council staff costs are
charged direct to the Fund and management, accommodation and other support service costs are apportioned to
the Fund in accordance with Council policy.

« Acquisition costs of investments include all direct transaction costs and sales receipts are net of all direct
transaction costs.

« Cash comprises cash in hand and demand deposits and includes amounts held by the fund’s external managers.
Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and that are subject to minimal risk of changes in value.
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1. ANALYSIS OF CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE/BENEFITS PAYABLE

Contributions represent those amounts receivable from various employing authorities in respect c
contributions and thoseligiblgoensionable employees. The d¢otimibuitions received during/ Z0dmounted to
£60.819n(EY.765n in 208/16) from employers aridt429n (£4471n in 208/16) fomemployees.

The employers tatamprised an amourfid®.25im (£30.488 in 208/16) relating to the common cortrilrate
averag®f13.8%paid by all employers a&281F5& (£2Z7 27 in 208/16) relatingp additional contributions jpaid
respect of deficit funding for individual employers.

Benefits payable and refunds of contributions have been brougltourits the #e basis of all valid claims
approved during the year.

Analysis of contributions receivdzbaatits payable is shown below

The above merely reflects the figures in the accounts. The circumstances pertaining to each of the bc
different for a variety of reasons (contribution and pefilsnempioyees' contribution rates, early retireme
experience etc.) and direct comparisons, therefore, are largely meaningless.

2. BULK TRANSFER
No bulk transfers were made during 2016/17
3. EXPENSES BOURNE BY THE FUND

The regulations permit thienCil to charge the cost of administering the scheme to the Fund. The external n
fees have been accounted for on the basis contained within their management agreement.

The cost of pension administratianvastiment management is shown atidiventy table. The main increase in
oversight and governance expenses telatiglitional costs incurred as a result of the formation of the W
Pension Partnership. Other elements includ&/aRigiE K UHYLHZ DQG LPSOHP Qrafdgywy L R
The consultancy fees also reflect the ongoing monitoring of the Long Term Nandgemergkofandate
together with a review of the funding risk management framework
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2017 2016
£000 £000
Oversight & Governance
Employee Cosis 236 225
Support Services 28 3
Supplies and Services 58 o4
Mizcellaneous Income (1) o
Consulancy & Actuarial 1,228 318
Audi 39 39
Legal 59 35
1,633 1,202
Investment Management Fees
Net Fund Management Fees 14,386 14,971
Cusiody Fees 3 28
Periormance Moniioring Fees aF a0
14,474 15,029
Administration Costs
Employee Cosis 643 603
Support Services o4 148
Cuizourcing 260 404
Supplies & Services 366 237
1,368 1,390
Total Fees 17,475 17,621

Investment management fees are broadly based on the market value of the investments under their management and
therefore increase or reduce as the value of these investments change. The Fund is invested in pooled vehicles of
which the majority of fees are charged within the funds. The 2014/15 CIPFA guidance required pension funds to include
all investment manager fees including those which are deducted at source to fund of fund investments. In addition to the
underlying fees the guidance also required Funds to include transaction costs (which were previously included in a
narrative note only).

The CIPFA guidance was revised in 2015/16 and clarified the position with regards to underlying fees, invoking the
accounting principle of control. The guidance clarifies that Funds should only include fees where they have a direct
relationship with the investment manager, meaning that underlying fees should not be included within the Management
Expenses total. This information remains disclosable within the Fund’s Annual Report.

The Fund Management Fees shown overleaf show the fees for 2016/17 and 2015/16. Total expenses include Annual

Management Charges from Fund Managers and also any additional costs such as operational, administrative and legal
costs.
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Total fees as a percentage of tlasset value of the fund@8x8ofor 206/17 (10906 205/16).

4.INVESTMENTS AND PERFORMANCE

Further details on the investment strategy are availablestmibat Strategy Stentvhich can bdtined
from the Clwyd Pension Fund MaGagerty Hall, Mold, CH7 6NA (Webvsitelwydpensionfund.oay.uk
Telephone 01352 702264).

The Council uses the investment performanes eBiv ConsultantEheir report fitre financial year @QT
showed that the Fund achieved an overall Bt1i®afaim its investmen@ X6 in 208/16). This compares with
WKH )XQG YV EHQ®BR®RN.WOLSH EHKtbey el ]

5. ANALYSIS OF TRANSACTIONS AND RETURN ON INVESTMENTS

Overview

The Fund invests its surplus monies in assets through a wide range of managers. All these main inv
through pooled vehicles where the Fund is one of many investors angediedentoeses are invested on a
common basis althqugl) WKH )X QG 1V, thabeVird & c@upy &f bt Vidldihgé V\Generally, however
Fund has no direct holdings of equities, bonds, properties, private equity companies, bemfinahited or
instruments.

Transactions and Return on Investments
Details of the 217 investment transactions hadeéet profit on sales 6. 2081 (£4.840n in 208/16) together
with investment incomgraf32n (£5.868n in 208/16) are set out lmwv. The unrealigedfifor 206/17, because

of the change in the market value of investments, anf@4GSHBA£9.546n lossin 205/16). Therefor¢he
increase in market value of investments (realised and is¥8a0s8in (F4.706ndecreaein 205/14.
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6. MARKET VALUE OF INVESTMENTSJUEMNG.CASH AND FUTURES)

The book cost of the investments ash\dargh 2(is £1,171.084(£1,123.290 in 203/16). The market value of
investments as attBlarch 20is£1,662305n (£1365.28& in 208/16); thiscan be analysed as follows

By Cominent

The UK holdings as atNarch 2(1account for 318btotal investments at market value:

By Fund Manager
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By Listed /Managed
2016 2015
Listed Listed Unlisted Listed Listed Unlisted
Managed Managed
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Fixed Interest Securities 0 0 170,331 0 0 172,749
Overseas Equities 202,826 0 0 196,990 0 50,299
Multi Strategy 227,037 0 0 205,260 0 0
Property 38,988 0 70,245 36,018 0 67,504
Infrastructure 0 11,417 15,934 0 6,712 27,416
Timber / Agriculture 0 0 25,937 0 0 26,207
Commodities 0 0 0 0 0 24,962
Private Equity 0 1,998 137,584 0 1,969 140,839
Hedge Fund 0 0 139,221 21,977 0 26,773
Opportunistic 0 0 8,240 0 0 9,998
Liability Driven Investment 315,530 0 0 329,101 0 0
784,381 13,415 567,492 789,346 8,681 546,747
1,365,288 1,344,774
2017 2016
Listed Listed Unlisted Listed Listed Unlisted
Managed Managed
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Fixed Interest Securities 0 0 198,621 0 0 170,331
Overseas Equities 237,485 0 0 202,826 0 0
Multi Strategy 349,095 0 0 227,037 0 0
Property 39,919 0 74,795 38,988 0 70,245
Infrastructure 0 13,043 18,718 0 11,417 15,934
Timber / Agriculture 0 0 29,103 0 0 25,937
Private Equity 0 1,013 151,410 0 1,998 137,584
Hedge Fund 0 0 127,279 0 0 139,221
Opportunistic 0 0 17,966 0 0 8,240
Liability Driven Investment 393,858 0 0 315,530 0 0
1,020,357 14,056 617,892 784,381 13,415 567,492
1,652,305 1,365,288

NOTES TO THE CLWYD PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

7. FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENTS
Financial Instruments

Whilst the Fund invests almost exclusively through pooled vehicles, the managers of these vehicles invest in a variety of
financial instruments including bank deposits, quoted equity instruments, fixed interest securities, direct property
holdings, unlisted equity products, commodity futures and other derivatives. This exposes the Fund to a variety of
financial risks including credit and counterparty risk, liquidity risk, market risk and exchange rate risk.

Stock lending is the loan of specific securities from one investor to another that entitles the lender to continue receiving
income generated by the stock plus an additional payment by the borrower. Exposure to risk is reduced by the borrower
providing high quality collateral (cash, securities or gilts). It is effectively a trading activity to generate income rather than
an investment. The Fund has no direct exposure to stock lending.
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Fair Value - Valuation Bases

Investments are shown in the accounts at fair value as at 31st March 2017 on the following bases.

UK and overseas listed securities are valued within the respective pooled vehicles using the official bid prices quoted
on the relevant stock exchange. Overseas holdings are converted to sterling at an exchange rate quoted at close of
business on 31st March 2017.

Unit trusts are valued at the bid market price.

Other pooled vehicles are valued at the bid point of the latest process quoted by their respective managers or fund
administrators at 31st March 2017. Where a bid price is not available the assets are priced at the net asset value
provided.

Property funds are valued at the bid market price, which is based upon regular independent valuation of the pooled
vehicles’ underlying property holdings.

Private equity holdings are interests in limited partnerships. It is important to recognise the highly subjective nature of
determining the fair value of these investments. They are inherently based on forward looking estimates and
judgments involving many factors. These holdings are valued based upon the Fund’s share of the net assets of the
partnership according to the latest financial statements published by the respective managers. Where these
valuations are not at the Fund’s balance sheet date, the valuations are adjusted having due regard to the latest
dealings, asset values and other financial information available at the time of preparing these statements in order to
reflect the Fund’s balance sheet date. The managers’ valuation statements are prepared in accordance with the
European Private Equity and Venture Capital Association (EVCA) Guidelines, net of carried interest. These
incorporate the US-based FAS157 protocol on valuation approaches —

o Market — uses prices and other relevant data generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable
assets/liabilities (e.g. money multiples)

o Income — uses valuation techniques to convert expected future amounts to a single present amount (discounted
cash flows or earnings)

o Cost - based upon the amount that currently would be required to replace the service capacity of an asset
(adjusted for obsolescence)

Managers are required “to use the method that is appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is
used and to apply the approach consistently until no longer appropriate.” It is also possible to use multiple or
combinations of approaches. Most private equity managers use a combination of the “market” and “income”
approaches.

Infrastructure investments are generally carried at the lower of cost and fair value, except where there are specific
upward or downward valuations. In estimating fair value, managers use their judgment, having regard to the EVCA
guidelines noted above for valuing unquoted investments. Upward valuations are considered only where there is
validation of the investment objectives and such progress can be demonstrated. Downward valuations are enacted
regardless of the investment stage where the manager considers that there is impairment to the underlying
investment.

Timberland investments are carried at net asset value as determined by the General Partner. In most cases fair
value is derived from the audited financial statements provided by underlying managers or vehicles. In
circumstances where audited financial statements are not available to 31st March, the valuations are derived from
unaudited quarterly reports from the underlying managers or vehicles. Where the timber investments are direct
rather than through underlying managers, valuations are based upon regular independent valuation of these
holdings.
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« Hedge funds are valued monthly to create a net asset value on the basis of the Fund’s proportionate share of the
value of underlying pools on a manager by manager basis. Generally the fair value of the Fund’s investment in a
related pool represents the amount that the Fund could be reasonably expected to receive from the pool if the Fund’s
investment was redeemed at the date of valuation, based upon information reasonably available at the time that the
valuation was made and that the fund believes to be reliable.

« Diversified Growth and Multi Strategy funds invest for the most part in markets that are not exchange-based. These
include OTC or “interdealer” markets and leverage is utilised by such funds to a significant level. If market prices are
not available or do not reflect current market prices, the Fund applies its own pricing policies by reference to such
relevant prices as are available to establish a fair value for the assets held.

Sensitivity of Assets Valued at Level 3
The valuation methods described above are likely to be accurate within varying ranges dependent on the asset

concerned. An indication of the possible impact of these fluctuations on the closing value of the investments is shown in
the following table.

Assessed Market Value on Value on
Valuation Value Increase Decrease

Range (+/-) 2016/17

Level 3
£000 £000 £000
Liability Driven Investment 10% 12,768 14,045 11,491
Property 10% 74,795 82,275 67,316
Infrastructure 10% 18,718 20,590 16,846
Timber & Agriculture 10% 29,103 32,013 26,193
Private Equity 15% 151,410 174,122 128,699
Hedge Fund 10% 9,634 10,597 8,671
Opportunistic Funds 10% 17,966 19,763 16,169
314,394 353,405 275,385

Fair Value - Hierarchy

The valuation of financial instruments has been classified into three levels according to the quality and reliability of
information used to determine fair values.

Level 1

Financial instruments at Level 1 are those where the fair values are derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities. Products classified as level 1 comprise quoted equities, quoted fixed interest
securities and unit trusts. Listed investments are shown at bid price.

Level 2

Financial instruments at Level 2 are those where quoted market prices are not available, for example, where an
instrument is traded in a market that is not considered to be active, or where valuation techniques are used to determine
fair value and where those techniques use inputs that are based significantly on observable market data.

Level 3

Financial instruments at Level 3 are those where at least one input that could have a significant effect on the
instrument’s valuation is not based on observable market data. Such instruments would be unquoted equity investments
and hedge fund of funds, which are valued using various valuation techniques that require significant judgment in
determining appropriate assumption.
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7KH IROORZLQJ WDEOHV VKRZ W RMasiR20MaWIBR Qaréhl 2@Hased)panhGHisV [
hierarchy.

(1) Property/ Infrastrucflimberlnd Agricultur&arious valuation bases are used. Direct fund holdings are v
based upon independent valuahess, have been classified as lere 8pméunds also often hold joint venture
and partnership interéstdare subject tovariety of valuation methodologies. To be conskesafive]s have
been classified Levah&sghe fund itself is quoted.

(2) Private Equapnd Opportunisitands- Various valuation bases are msfdlingost, quoted prices (often
discount G | R4X @rBris&¢tion multiples, market multiples, future realisation proceeds, company prosg
party opinion etc. Company and fund valuations often reflect combinations of these valuation be
conservative, all funds have dlassified Level 3 unless the fund itself is quoted.

Within themvestments shown above as (1) whil) a small proporéionlisted, threajority of the holdingsrare
unguotedhvestment£331.91fin comparetb £296928n in 208/16. These are keed at a fair value by the fund
managers, using an appropriate basis of valuation. The valuations are reliant upon a significant degree of
due to the subjectivity and variability of these valuations there is an increased likalihatonthatcheled in
the financial statements would not be realised in the event of a sale. The difference could be materially lo\
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8. INVESTMENT RISKS

As demonstrated, the Fund maintains positions in a variety of financial instruments including bank deposits, quoted
equity instruments, fixed interest securities, direct property holdings and unlisted equity products. This exposes the
Fund to a variety of financial risks including credit and counterparty risk, liquidity risk, market risk and exchange rate
risk.

Procedures for Managing Risk

The principal powers to invest are contained in the LGPS (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016,
effective from 1st November 2016, and which require administering authorities to formulate an Investment Strategy
Statement (ISS) in accordance with guidance issued by the Secretary of State. This replaces the requirement to
produce and maintain a Statement of Investment Practice. The Administering Authority’s overall risk management
procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial markets and implementing restrictions to minimise these risks. The
Fund will annually review its ISS and corresponding Funding Strategy Statement (FSS), which set out the Pension
Fund’s policy on matters such as the type of investments to be held, balance between types of investments, investment
restrictions and the way risk is managed. The ISS and FSS are on the Fund’s website (www.clwydpensionfund.org.uk).

The Fund carries out a formal review of its structure at least every 4 years, usually every 3 years. The last full review
was carried out in 2014 at which the Fund’s Consultants, JLT Group determined that the resulting asset mix coupled
with the requirements for certain fund managers to outperform their market indices should produce long-term returns of
7.2% with a volatility of around 11%. A light-touch review was undertaken during 2016 that reduced the long-term
expected annual return to 6.5% taking account of changes in long-term market trends but also the Government’s
guidance on infrastructure investment by increasing the Fund’s exposure from 2% to 8% over the medium term. A key
element in this review process was the consideration of risk and for many years now the Fund has pursued a policy of
lowering risk by diversifying investments across asset classes, investment regions and fund managers. Furthermore,
alternative assets are subject to their own diversification requirements and some examples are given below.

. private equity — by stage, geography and vintage where funds of funds are not used
. property — by type, risk profile, geography and vintage (on closed-ended funds)

. infrastructure - by type (primary/secondary), geography and vintage

« hedge funds - bespoke funds via a managed account platform

The Fund invests in a Long Term Management of Risk mandate. The strategy provides a framework to enable the Fund
to effectively reduce risk when market conditions become more favourable (i.e. bonds become cheaper). The framework
includes both market yield based triggers. In particular, the manager makes use of Liability Driven Investment (LDI)
techniques to increase the level of hedging within the Fund. This is achieved through the physical purchase of gilts
along with repurchase agreements (repo). These allow the fund to gain unfunded exposure to gilts. The manager also
replicates the Fund’s developed passive equity allocation using Equity Total Return Swaps (TRS). During 2016/17 the
Fund’'s Committee approved a review of the Flightpath framework to improve its efficiency to the long term benefit of the
Fund and this was completed on 3 March with an expected net gain of £36.5m over the term of the bonds held. It was
also agreed in principle to implement ‘equity options’ to protect against the impact on employer contributions of material
falls in the equity element of the current mandate and take the opportunity to update the interest rate and inflation
triggers and potential actions within the flightpath structure if the funding position improves further. The outcome of this
review is currently being implemented.

Roll risk

The LDI manager has the facility to use repurchase agreements, once these agreements mature, they need to be
replaced with other contracts to maintain the relevant exposure (known as “rolling” the contract). This involves managing
the operational risks raised to ensure sufficient resources are in place to arrange the trades and manage the process. In
addition, as a contract matures, the underlying market for repo may become illiquid and at the extreme, the manager
may not be able to roll the position. This is mitigated by structuring the overall repo over a range of maturity dates and
diversifying counterparty exposure.
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ManageRisk

The Fund is also well diversified by manager with maragglemanaging more #& of Fund assets. On
appointment fund managers are delegated the power through an investment management agreement
purchases and sales as they d@enopriate under the mandate concerned. Each mandate has a benchr
target to outperform or achieve, usually on the yasis rollBig periodfoAnal annual updeteequired from
each manager to discuss their mandates and their perfotheamoegning performance management is alsc
undertakenThere are slightly different arrangements for some of the alternative assets. On private equi
infrastructure and timber/agriculture, investment is fund rather tspeciiEnagepecific funds selected by the
inrhouse team after careful due diligence. These conamasmadlsr in natulegan main asset class investments
but again regular performance reports are received and such investments are reviewed veith omaesgers ¢
year.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligationtor corn
has entered into with the Fund. As noted@i@¥*R VW DOO WKH )XQG pMd kéhicles\akd R H (
number of these are involved in derivative trades of various sorts, including futures, swaps and options. \
is not a direct counterparty to such trades and so has no direct credit risk, clearly all derivativeotiaisactio
D GHJUHH RI ULVN DQG WKH YDOXH RI WKH SRROHG YHKLFOH
IDLOXUH RI RQH RI WKH YHKLFOHTV FRXQWHUSDUWLHV

However, part of the operational due diligence carried out on posmnépponategg concerns itself with the
TXDOLW\ RI WKDW PDQDJHUYV ULVN SURFHVVHY DURXQG FRXQW
to minimise exposure to credit risk. Once appointed, managers are required to ptrwirdencopiemteinal
control reports for review to ensure tigdeloeedtandards are maintained.

Deposits are not made with banks and financial institutions unless they are rated independently
Subject to cash flow requirements, cash can eeldepostof the following:
x The Pension Fund bank account with the National Westminster Bank for daily liquidity

x A National Westminster deposit acdomittv DFFHVV XS WR GD\VYT QRWLFH
x A Money Market AAA Fund for unexpected liquidity requirghemestes bi return.
The Fund believes it has managed its exposure to credit risk and has no experience of default or uncolle

LQ WKH ODVW WKUHH |L QHiQigs Bat $8i1Brth\V2T1wereE33 BB &LY 5/038Da/ B
March 2@). This was held as follows:

Within the Fund, thieas of focus in terms of credit risk are bonds and some of the alternative asset categor

x TKH )XQGYV ERQG SRUWIROLR LV PDQDJHG RQ DQ XQFRQVWUI
market debt and loans. AtNgrch 200 the) X Q GV H [ S RiawesundntWredepRp@s £3.158 or
46.9%6 ofthe fixed interest portfolio ¥3ét533 March 215).

x 2Q SULYDWH HTXLW\ DQG LQIUDVWUXFWXUH WKH )XQGYV LQ
concerned.
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Liquidity Risk

The Pension Fund has its own bank account. At its simplest, liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will |
meet its financial obligations when they fall due, especially pensitmigsayraeiiisrs. At a strategic level the
Administering Authority, together with its consulting actuary, reviews the position of the Fund triendially to
its obligtions can be suitably covedegioing cash flow planning in respect ibLitong; benefit payments,
investment income and capital s#iilsidions is also essential and undertaken regularly by the Fund.

Specifically on investments, the Fund holds through its managers a mixtureliqtiicbjait déquiid assets.
:KLOVW WKH )XQGYV LQYHVWPHQW PDQDJHUV KDYH VXEVWDQW
the management of their cash positions, they hold within their pooled vehicles a large value of very liq
such as equitiaad bonds quoted on major stock exchanges, which can easily be realised. Traditional
equitiegincluding synthetic equity exp@swdjonds naemprise®@2 R 1 W K HolaXQue and, whilst there
will be some slightly less liquid elementthisifigare (emerging market equities and debt for example), the
investing in these securities offer monthly tradingsaft@vovetekly or fortnightly.

On alternative assets the position is more mixed. Whilst there are a couplele$ dneoesanatiare subject to
their own liquidity terms or, in the case of property, redemption relededGlostsisuch as most private equity
vehicles and some property and infrastructure funds are effectively illiquid for the spdc{iisd&imd (eri
years), although they can be sold on the secondary market, usually at a discount.

7KH WDEOH EHORZ DQDO\VHV WK MAaRIC2FHy RyLidiykpkofileX QG TV LQY H Vv

It should be noted that different quoted investments are subject to different settlement rulesdoeti@b pay!
are usually due within 7 days of the transaction (buy/sell) date. Because the Fund uses pooled vehicl
investments these are often subject to daily, weeldly, @ monthly trading dates. All such investments have
designat& 3ZLWKLQ PRQWK™ IRU WKH SKdé®propetty fuRds @re Subje@ to\WetleDnQid
rules set by their management boards. Many have quarterly redemptions but these can be held back in d
SO as not to force saled disadvantage continuing investors. For liquidity analysis purposes, a conservative
wasDSSOLHG DQG DOO VXFK LQYHV28PRQWWKKDYH EHHQ GHVLJQD
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Closeeended funds have been desidnbiquid for the purposes of liquidity analysis. However, teesedlosed
vehicles have a very different cash flow pattern to traditional investments since the monies committed a
down as the underlying investments are made (usaglgriodenf 5 years) and distributions are returned as s
as underlying investments are exited (often as early as year 4).

In terms of cash flow, therefore, the net cash flow for such a vehicle usually only reaches a mas0ftum of
of the amunt committed and cumulative distributions usually exceed curdahatngewtthwefore the end of the

specified period, as these vehicles regularly return 1% to 2% times the money invested. At the same tin
WKH )XQGT{V S hénkes\on R Hegild® ahr@al bagiv\so the vintage year of active vehicles ranges fi
to 20Z. This means that, whilst all these monies have been desigrendedlasddhereby illiquid on the basis
RI WKHLUBD/XDQIH" P ®rgatuiytihnkrapked biylhis\esaghation.

As can be seen from the table, even using the conservative basis outlined afvef tdreupaktibim
realisable within 1 month.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair valugeocéigh flows of a financial institution will fluctuate because of char
market price. The Fund is exposed to the risk of financial loss from a change in the value of its investr
consequential danger that its assets will fail toetleingein line with the anticipated returns underpinning
valuation of its liabilities over the long term.

Market risk is comprised of two elements
x The risks associated with volatility in the performance of the asset class itself (beta);

x The riks associated with the ability of managers, where allowed, to move away from index weights anc
alpha, thereby offsetting beta risk by exceeding market performance.

7KH IROORZLQJ WDEOH VHWV RXW D @ ab33¥ Da@dhAMbyRhoWirg the) 2@t \
invested in each asset class and through each manager within each main asset class, the index used as
WKH WDUJHW VHW IRU PDQDJHUYV DJDLQVW WKLYV g HdirtiRdeXJiN C
achieving this. Taxpected risk is based on 10 year historic retuteibiyd
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NOTES TO THE CLWYD PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

The risks associated with volatility in market vatagsyaranaged through a policy of broadlasssification.
The Fund sets restritgi on the type of investment it can hold through investment limits, in accordance witt
Government Pension Scheme (Management samebribvad Funds) Regulations. 206 Fund also adopts a
specific strategic benchmark (de®ilsQ W KsHS$ @ % weightings of the various asset classes within
benchmark form the basis for asset allocation within the Fund. Under narthafedditimerly rebalartoing
this strategic benchmark within fixed tolerances. This atiddatibo,RPILQHG WKURXJK WKH )XC
is designed to diversify and minimise risk for a specific level of performance through a broad spread c
across both the main and alternative asset classes and geographic regioressethitagsacithe current
strategic benchmark is targeted to proddeentogigrns @.3%6 with a volatility of aro@n@d

Market risk is also managed through manager diverssdamadiouncting a diversified portfolio across multig
investmdnmanagers. On a daily basis, managers will manage risk in line with the benchmarks, targe
parameters set for the mandate, as well as their own policies and processes. The Fund itself monitors n
regular basis (at least quarterbl) threse aspects. On property and private equity, fund and manager divers
is vital and, whilst a full list of investments is not detailed here, the Fund has exposures as follows:
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NOTES TO THE CLWYD PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

Other Price Risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or foreign exchange risk), whether those changes are caused by
factors specific to the individual instrument or its issuer or factors affecting all such instruments.

The fund is exposed to share and derivative price risk. This arises from investments held by the fund for which the future
price is uncertain. All securities investments present a risk of loss of capital. The fund’s investment managers mitigate
this price risk through diversification and the selection of securities and other financial instruments is monitored by the
fund to ensure it is within limits specified in the fund’s investment strategy.

Following analysis of historical data and expected investment return movement during the financial year, in consultation
with the fund’s Investment Consultant, JLT Group, the fund has determined that the following movements in market
price risk are reasonably possible for the 2016/17 reporting period:

Asset Type Potential Market Movements
(+7-)
Oveseas Equity 11.36%
Fixed Interest Securities 3.20%
Liability Driven Investing 16.76%
Pooled Multi Strategy 5.58%
Hedge Fund 5.67%
Alternatives 4.99%
Property 3.15%
Cash 0.01%

The sensitivities are consistent with the assumptions provided by the JLT Group based on historic data collated for the
Fund. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates
remain the same.

Had the market price of the Fund’s investments increased / decreased in line with the above, the change in the net
assets available to pay benefits in the market price would have been as follows (prior year comparator also provided).

Asset Type Market  Percentage = Valueon  Value on
Value Change Increase  Decrease

2016/17 % £000 £000

Cash and cash equivalents 33,623 0.01 33,626 33,620

Investment portfolio assets:-
Global Equity inc UK

Overseas Equity 237,485 11.36 264,456 210,514
Fixed Interest Securities 198,621 3.20 204,980 192,262
Liability Driven Investing 393,858 16.76 459,885 327,831
Pooled Multi Strategy 349,095 5.58 368,588 329,602
Hedge Fund 127,279 5.67 134,494 120,064
Alternatives 231,253 4.99 242,787 219,719
Property 114,714 3.15 118,324 111,104

1,685,928 1,827,140 1,544,716
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NOTES TO THE CLWYD PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

Interest Rate Risk

The Fund invests in financial assets for the primary purpose of obtaining a return on investments. Thes
are subject to interest rate risks, which represent thtbeiskitivalue or future clastsfof a financial instrument

will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Fund recognises that interest rates can vary and dii¢eicidootie to the fund and the net assets available
SD\ EHQHILWY 7KH )XQGTV )L[H GratesmRyrise BIhasB fdinigpps)dvertie Gext V H
year As the fund does not use Fixed Income securities to provide incomeg seresfollibyvanalysis only refers

to cash and cash balances.
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NOTES TO THE CLWYD PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

Currency Risk

Currency risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
the changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund is exposed to currency risk on financial instruments that are
denominated in any other currency other than the functional currency of the Fund (GBP). The Fund holds assets
denominated in currencies other than GBP.

The following table summarises the Fund’s currency exposure as at 31st March 2017 and as at the previous year end:

Currency Exposure - Asset Type Market Value  Market Value
2016/17 2015/16

£000 £000

Fixed Interest Securities 198,621 170,331
Overseas Equities Active 237,485 202,826
Multi Strategy 349,095 227,037
Hedge Funds 127,279 139,221
Property 30,952 32,056
Infrastructure 15,203 12,441
Timber / Agriculture 29,103 25,937
Opportunitistic 14,632 8,240
Private Equity 130,350 118,118
1,132,720 936,207

Following analysis of the historical data in consultation with the fund’s Investment Consultants, JLT Group, and analysis
of the exposures to foreign currency for the year to 31st March 2017, it was considered that the likely volatility associated
with foreign exchange rate movements to be 5.95%. For the period to 31st March 2016, this was calculated to be 5.85%.

This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. These individual year
percentages strengthening/ weakening against the various currencies in which the fund hold investments would
increase/ decrease the net assets available to pay benefits as follows:

Currency Exposure - Asset Type Market  Percentage  Value on Value on
Value Change Increase  Decrease

2016/17 % £000 £000

Fixed Interest Securities 198,621 5.95 210,434 186,808
Overseas Equity - Active 237,485 5.95 251,609 223,361
Multi Strategy 349,095 5.95 369,857 328,333
Hedge Fund 127,279 5.95 134,849 119,709
Timber & Agriculture 29,103 5.95 30,834 27,372
Infrastructure 15,203 5.95 16,107 14,299
Property 30,952 5.95 32,793 29,111
Opportunistic 14,632 5.95 15,502 13,762
Private Equity 130,350 5.95 138,102 122,598
1,132,720 1,200,087 1,065,353
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9. RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES
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NOTES TO THE CLWYD PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

Analysis of receivables

Central Government Bodies
Other Local Authorities
Other Entities and Individuals

4,545

Analysis of payables

Central Government Bodies
Other Local Authorities
Other Entities and Individuals

(2,307

10. MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

2017
£000
12
3,935
598

2017
£000
3)
(508)
(1,796)
)

2016
£000
13
4,868
468
5,349

2016

£000

(5)

(468

(4,523
(4,996

— |— —

The Fund undertakes a review of fund management arrangements every three or four years. A light-touch review was
undertaken during 2016/17 and the following table details the changes which were completed during 2016/17. Some
subscriptions and redemptions were staggered through 2016/17, details are shown below.

2016/17

Manager Mandate

Redemptions/ Change in Allocations

Aberdeen Frontier Market Equities
Stone Harbor Multi-Asset Credit
Wellington Emerging Market Equity
Subscriptions

Consultant "Best Ideas" Portfolio

11. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

Allocation Redemption/ Subscription
Initial Final Initial Final
2.5% 0.0% Nov-16 Jan-17
15.0% 12.0% N/A N/A
6.5% 6.0% N/A N/A
9.0% 11.0% N/A Feb-17

The accounts outlined within the statement represent the financial position of the Clwyd Pension Fund as at 31st March
2017. Since this date, the performance of the global equity markets may affect the financial value of pension fund
investments. This movement does not affect the ability of the Fund to pay its pensioners.

12. ADDITIONAL VOLUNTARY CONTRIBUTIONS (AVCs)

In accordance with Regulations of 4(1)b of The Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations
2016, a market value or an estimate thereof has not been included for the money purchase AVC investments. These
assets are specifically allocated to the provision of additional benefits for particular members. The Clwyd Pension Fund
has the services of two AVC providers (Prudential and Equitable Life) for members’ additional benefits with the funds
being invested in a range of investment products including fixed interest, equity, cash, deposit, property and socially

responsible funds, as follows :-

Contributions paid

Units purchased

Units sold

Market value as at 31st March 2017
Market value as at 31st March 2016
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807,023
120,657
95,008
4,960,248
4,609,979



NOTES TO THE CLWYD PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Governance

Under legislation, introduced in 2004, Councilors are entitled to join the Pension Scheme. As at 31st March 2017, two
Members of the Clwyd Pension Fund Committee have taken this option. The four Co-opted Members of the Pension
Fund Committee receive fees in relation to their specific responsibilities as members of the Committee in the form of an
attendance allowance that is in line with that adopted by Flintshire County Council.

Key Management Personnel

The key management personnel of the fund are the Flintshire County Council Chief Executive and the Corporate
Finance Manager (S151 Officer). Total remuneration payable to key management personnel for 2016/17 and 2015/16 is
set out below for their time apportioned to the Fund.

2017 2016

£000 £000

Short-term benefits 16.7 16.8
Post-employment benefits 0.2 0.1
16.9 16.9

Flintshire County Council

In the course of fulfilling its role as administering authority to the Fund, Flintshire County Council provided services to
the Fund for which it charged £1.004m (£1.296m in 2015/16). These costs are in respect of those staff employed in
ensuring the pension service is delivered, and other costs such as payroll and information technology. The costs are
included in the accounts within oversight and governance, and administration expenses (see note 3). At the year end, a
net balance of £0.408m was owing to Flintshire in relation to creditors payments made on behalf of the fund (£0.284m in
2015/16).

14, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31st March 2017, the Fund has contractual commitments of £672.4m (£681.2m in 2015/16) in private equity
infrastructure, timber and agriculture and property funds, of which £517.3m (£473.6m in 2015/16) has been deployed,
leaving an outstanding commitment of £155.0m (£207.6m in 2015/16).

15. AGENCY ACCOUNTING

The Clwyd Pension Fund pays discretionary awards to the former employees of former and current Unitary Authorities,
Town and Community Councils and Educational Organisations. The amounts are not included within the Fund Account
but are provided as a service and fully reclaimed from the employer bodies. The sums are disclosed below.

2017 Payments on behalf of 2016
£000 £000
2,255 Wrexham County Borough Council 2,315
3,209 Flintshire County Council 3,298
1,823 Denbighshire County Council 1,877
551 Conwy County Borough Council 571
51 Coleg Cambria 48
36 Glyndwr 40
22 Powys County Council 23

9 North Wales Fires Service 10

9 DVLA 8

7 Local Government Management Board 7

0 Welsh Water Authority 4

4 Magistrates Court 4

1 Llanasa Community Council 1

1 Cefn Mawr Community Council 1
7,978 8,207
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16. ACTUARIAL VALUATION & VALUE OF PROMISED RETIREMENT BENEFITS FOR THE PURPOSE
3URYLGHG E\ W K HMeXear Gnitéd$ F W X D U\

This statement has been provided to meet the requirements under Regulation 57(1)(d) of The Local
Pension Scheme Regulations 2013ctuarial valuation of the Clwyd Pension Fund was carried'®ldras at 31
2016 to determihe tcontribution rates with effectsiapritl2017 to Barch 2020.

2Q WKH EDVLV RI WKH DVVXPSWLRQV DGRSWHG WKH )XQGTV I
VHUYLFH OLDELOLWLHV RI ... alpdtian@at® Qhe WekcH at the QabatiQrniwadihekF
£437 million.

The valuation also showed that a Primary contribution rate of 15.3% of pensionable pay per annum was re
employers. The Primary rate is cal@gabeing sufficient, together with contributions paid by members, to me
liabilities arising in respect of service after the valuation date.

The funding objective as set out in the Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) is to achieve arsbltrencynaints
funding level of 100% of liabilities (the solvency funding target). In line with the FSS, where a shortfal
effective date of the valuation a deficit recovery plan will be put in place which requires additionakcontribu
the shortfall (or contribution reductions to refund any surplus).

The FSS sets out the process for determining the recovery plan in respect of each employer. At this actt
the average deficit recovery period is 15 years, and th&/tbtBl@ UHFRYHU\ SD\PHQW WKH
years commencing 1 April 2017 is approximately £29.4 million per annum. For most employers, the Secc
increase at 3.45% per annum, except where phasing has been appliedsoagvbedavititty the employer to pay
a flat contribution. With the agreement of the Administering Authority employers may also opt to pay
employer contributions early (after suitably agreed reductions), with either all three yeAmib20iy paid in
payment being made in the April of the year in question.

Further details regarding the results of the valuation are contained in the formal report on the actuarial v
3tMarch 2017.

,Q SUDFWLFH HDFK LGt ¥skaased $2patdredyrir\ tHeJchmrilBiRovis required are set ou
report. In addition to the certified contribution rates, payments to cover additional liabilities arisingtom ea
(other than-ikalth retirements) will be et Fund by the employers.

The funding plan adopted in assessing the contributions for each individual employer is in accordance wi

Strategy Statement (FSS). Any different approaches adopted, e.g. with regard to the implemgitation c
increases and deficit recovery periods, are as determined through the FSS consultation process.
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The valuation was carried out using the projected unit actuarial method and the main actuagdl fassump
assessing the Funding Target and the Primary rate of contribution were as follows:

For past service liabilities | For future service liabilities (Pri
(Funding Target) rate of contribution)

Rate of return on investments (discouni 4.20% peannum 4.95% per annum

Rate of pay increases (long term)* 3.45% per annum  3.45% per annum
Rate of increases in pensions
in payment (in excess of 2.2% per annum 2.2% per annum

Guaranteed Minimum Pension)
* allowance was also made fostetmarpuldisector pay restraint over a 4 year period.

The assets were assessed at market value.

The next triennial actuarial valuation of the Fund is dtiascatB119. Based on the results of this valuation, 1
contribution rates payable by the indivigilayers will be revised with effect! il 2020.

Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits for the Purposes of IAS 26

,$6 UHTXLUHVY WKH SUHVHQW YDOXH RI WKH )XQGTV &YRLLVH
actuarial assumptions and methodology used should be based on IAS 19 rather than the assumptions an
used for funding purposes.

To assess the value of the benefits on this basis, we have used the following financial at$Maptions as at !
2017 (the 3March 2016 assumptions are included for comparison):

31 March 2016 31 March 2017

Rate of return on investments (discouni 3.6% per annum 2.5% per annum

Rate of pay increases* 3.5% per annum 3.55% per annum
Rate of increas in pensions
in payment (in excess of 2.0% per annum 2.3% per annum

Guaranteed Minimum Pension)
* includes a corresponding allowance to that made in the latest formal actuarial vicratiombigr sboiar pay restraint.

The demographic asgptions are the same as those used for funding purposes. Full details of these assun
set out in the formal report on the actuarial valuatiocthMated 3017.

During the year, corporate bond yields fell, resulting in a lower Osiogunsedtéor IAS 26 purposes at the yea
end than at the beginning of the year (2.5% p.a. versus 3.6% p.a.). The-expecttd WnGPI inflation
increased during the year, from 2.0% p.a. tB@IB%3.these factors combined served tasignificrease the
liabilities over the yedihe pay increase assumption at the year end has also changed to da#aw fabdibort
VHFWRU SD\ UHVWUDLQW WRJHWKHU ZLWK D ORZHU DV¥XRdH G (
reduce the liabilities.

7KH YDOXH RI WKH )XQGTV SURPLVHG UHW L UsH/RitdH P04 6Evd L elsttinhaié o/
as £2,164 milliomterest over the year increased the liabil#&8 lgillion, though allowingdbibenefits
accrued/paid over the period then decreased:filZemilbgn (after allowing for any increase in liabilities arising
result of early retirements/augmentalibesd. was then a further increase in liabilities of £402 milliaf made
"DFW XDULD O chaRgey/inl tié acRiRrMIVasSumptions used, primarily the discount rate and assum
future CPI as referred to above).

7KH QHW HIIHFW RI DOO WKH DERYH LV WKDW W K benEfits\&dd &sBIW H
March 2017 is therefore £2,642 million.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

| have audited the accounting statements and related notes (including the Expenditure and Funding Analysis) of:
« Flintshire County Council;
« Flintshire County Council Group; and
« Clwyd Pension Fund;

for the year ended 31 March 2017 under the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004.

Flintshire County Council's accounting statements comprise the Movement in Reserves Statement, the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement, and the Housing Revenue Account
Income and Expenditure Account and Movement on Reserves Statement.

Flintshire County Council's Group accounting statements comprise the Group Movement in Reserves Statement, the
Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Group Balance Sheet and the Group Cash Flow
Statement.

Clwyd Pension Fund's accounting statements comprise the Fund Account and the Net Assets Statement.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017 based on International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs).

Respective responsibilities of the responsible financial officer and the Auditor General for Wales

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts set out on page 10, the
responsible financial officer is responsible for the preparation of the statement of accounts, Flintshire County Council's
Group accounting statements and Clwyd Pension Fund's accounting statements, which gives a true and fair view.

My responsibility is to audit the accounting statements and related notes in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require me to comply with the Financial
Reporting Council's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the accounting statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the accounting statements and related notes
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the accounting statements and related notes are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Flintshire County Council, Flintshire County Council Group’s and Clwyd Pension Fund's
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the responsible financial officer and the overall presentation of the accounting
statements and related notes.

In addition, | read all the financial and non-financial information in the Narrative Report to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited accounting statements and related notes and to identify any information that is
apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by me in the course of
performing the audit. If | become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies, | consider the
implications for my report.

Opinion on the accounting statements of Flintshire County Council

In my opinion the accounting statements and related notes:

- give atrue and fair view of the financial position of Flintshire County Council as at 31 March 2017 and of its income
and expenditure for the year then ended; and

« have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2016-17.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Opinion on the accounting statements of Flintshire County Council Group

In my opinion the accounting statements and related notes:

» give a true and fair view of the financial position of Flintshire County Council Group as at 31 March 2017 and of its
income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

- have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2016-17.

Opinion on the accounting statements of Clwyd Pension Fund
In my opinion, the pension fund accounts and related notes:

- give a true and fair view of the financial transactions of Clwyd Pension Fund during the year ended 31 March 2017
and of the amount and disposition of the fund's assets and liabilities as at that date; and

- have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2016-17.

Opinion on other matters

In my opinion, the information contained in the Narrative Report is consistent with the accounting statements and related
notes.

Matters on which I report by exception

I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters, which | report to you, if, in my opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept;

« the accounting statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
« | have not received all the information and explanations | require for my audit;

« the Annual Governance Statement does not reflect compliance with guidance.

Certificate of completion of audit

| certify that | have completed the audit of the accounts of Flintshire County Council in accordance with the requirements
of the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 and the Auditor General for Wales' Code of Audit Practice.

Anthony Barrett

For and on behalf of

Huw Vaughan Thomas
Auditor General for Wales
24 Cathedral Road
Cardiff

CF119LJ

Signature Aﬁz\,\_ﬁ Date: -?’\ September 2017
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